
Mrs J Wallace
Head of Paid Service
Torridge District Council
Riverbank House
Bideford
Devon
EX39 2QG

DX 53606 BIDEFORD
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700

Date: 19 February 2019

MEETING OF LICENSING
On: Wednesday 27 February 2019 At: 10.00 am

Venue: Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 
2HS

NOTICE OF MEETING

To: Councillor T Inch (Chair)
Councillor M Langmead (Vice-Chair)
Councillors: P Christie, C Cottle-Hunkin, A Eastman, R Hancock, J Himan, 
K James, D McGeough and R Wiseman

Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the 
meeting

AGENDA

PART I - (OPEN SESSION)

1.  Apologies For Absence 
To receive apologies for absence for the meeting.

2.  Minutes 
Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 12 December 2018.

3.  Declarations of Interests 
Members with interests to declare should refer to the agenda item and describe the 
nature of their interest when the item is being considered.

4.  Agreement of Agenda Items Part I and II 



- 2 -

5.  Urgent Matters of Information to be Brought Forward with the Permission of the 
Chair and the Committee 

6.  Taxi Drivers Liaison Committee 
To receive a verbal update.

7.  SMALL COMMERCIAL VESSEL LICENSING POLICY (Pages 3 - 23)
To receive the report of the Lead Licensing Officer.

8.  Allocation of Hackney Carriage Plate (Pages 24 - 25)
To receive the report of the Lead Licensing Officer.

9.  Sex Establishment Policy (Pages 26 - 55)
To receive the report the Lead Licensing Officer.

10.  Business Report (Pages 56 - 58)
To receive the report the Lead Licensing Officer.

11.  Taxi rank WG 
To receive a verbal update.

12.  Consideration of the Forward Plan 

13.  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
The Chairman to move:-

That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972.

14.  Part II (CLOSED SESSION) 
Exclusion of Public

The Chair to move:-

That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part I and paragraph 10 
of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

15.  Gambling Premises (Pages 59 - 60)
To receive the report of the Lead Licensing Officer.

Meeting Organiser: Democratic Services



REPORT OF LEAD LICENSING OFFICER
To: LICENSING COMMITTEE
Subject: SMALL COMMERCIAL VESSEL LICENSING POLICY
Date: 27 FEBRUARY 2019 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:    

To present to the Committee the responses to the recent consultation on the Authority’s draft 
Licensing Policy for Small Commercial Vessels.

1. INTRODUCTION

Consultation on the revised Licensing Policy for Small Commercial Vessels was carried out between 
19th December 2018 and 31st January 2019.  This report provides a summary of the feedback from 
the consultees.

2. REPORT

The Authority has consulted with the following organisations and individuals over a 6 week period.

 Maritime and Coastguard Agency
 TDC Harbourmaster
 Owners of vessels licensed under the TDC scheme
 Boatmen Licensed under the TDC scheme

The following comments were received.

We received a request from two of the boatmen to extend the area of operation. In order to extend 
the area of operation an application would need to be submitted to the MCA. The submission needs 
to include a significant amount of information such as wave heights, wind charts, sounding charts 
and types and levels of vessels using the area. Some of these require specialist equipment to 
record the necessary information. Once the application has been submitted it would need to be 
considered at various committee levels within the MCA.

The alternative would be for the vessels to apply to the MCA for certification as a “sea going” vessel. 
They would then be able to operate outside of the existing limits. The requirements under the MCA 
certification scheme are much more rigorous that under the TDC scheme.

One consultee felt that paragraph 3.1.3.1 was unclear so this has been slightly re-worded.

Some other minor queries have been raised and resolved without the need to amend the policy.

The Council does not currently have a list of approved surveyors and the Lead Licensing Officer is 
currently working with the Harbour Master to produce a list of requirements it would be expected 
any prospective surveyor to hold.

The final draft policy is included at Appendix A with changes highlighted in red.

Page 3

Agenda Item 7



3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
The proposed changes bring the policy up to date with current legislation and good practice.

Financial Implications
None 

Human Resources Implications
None

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications
None

Equality/Diversity
None

Risk Management
There are legal, reputational and possible financial risks if the Council does not maintain a 
Policy which reflects current legislation and the latest guidance.

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
All regulatory activity is carried out in accordance with current policy and procedures.

Data Protection (GDPR) Implications
None

Ward Member and Lead Member Views

4. CONCLUSIONS

The Policy sets out the Authority’s approach to the regulation of small commercial vessels in the 
River Torridge and the standards it will apply in relation to licensed vessels and persons.  The 
proposed revisions to the current Policy are designed to keep it up to date, relevant and robust.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Members approve the revised policy.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Date of Consultation – As detailed in report
Officers Consulted – Harbour Master

Contact Officer: Chris Parkhouse

Background Papers: Licensing files

Page 4



1

LICENSINGLICENSING  POLICYPOLICY
  

SMALLSMALL  COMMERCIALCOMMERCIAL  
VESSELSVESSELS  ININ  USEUSE  FORFOR
SPORTSPORT  OROR  PLEASUREPLEASURE

Environmental Health and
 Public Protection

Version 2.0 Review Date 21.01.2016
Consultation Period 25th January 2016 – 4th March 2016
Approved: Licensing Committee 10.03.2016 Next Review Date January 2019

Page 5



2

Table of Contents

Topic Page

1 Introduction 3
2    Aims and Objectives 4
3    The Licensing Regime 4

    3.1  Vessels operating in the Torridge/Taw Estuary 4
    3.2  Operators Licence (South West Category 1) 8
    3.3  Vessels which go to Sea 9

4    Role of the Licensing Committee 9
5    Enforcement 10
6    Fees 10

Annexes

Annex 1 – Conditions Attached to Boat Licence 11
Annex 2 – Competence Requirements for Boatmen 14
Annex 3 – Conditions Attached to Boatmen’s Licence 15
Annex 4 – Licensing Guidance 17
Annex 5 – Definitions 19

This document can be made available in other formats and languages if required.
Please contact the Licensing Team for further details.

                   Telephone: 01237-428700.       E-mail: licensing@torridge.gov.uk

Page 6



3

1 INTRODUCTION

 This Policy is intended to provide general guidance only.  It does not constitute a definitive statement of law.  
Applicants who require legal advice on a specific licensing topic relating to small commercial vessels are 
advised to consult a solicitor. Text in the shaded boxes is advisory or explanatory and is intended only to give 
assistance to applicants, licence holders and authorised persons. 

1.1 The Council operates a scheme for the licensing of boatmen and pleasure boats operating in the 
River Torridge.

1.2 The purpose of this policy is to provide applicants for licences and other users of the licensing 
service with advice and information on the Authority’s requirements for licensing small commercial 
vessels and the skippers of such vessels.  It is also intended to ensure that the licensing authority 
applies consistent standards when determining licence applications.

The policy is underpinned by, and draws its authority from the following legislation:

 The Public Health Acts Amendment Act 1907
 Merchant Shipping (Vessels in Commercial Use for Sport or Pleasure) Regulations 1998
 Merchant Shipping (Small Commercial Vessels and Pilot Boats) Regulations 2004

The policy has been prepared with due regard to the following codes of practice and guidance:

 The Code of Practice for the Safety of Small Vessels in Commercial Use for Sport or Pleasure 
Operating from a Nominated Departure Point (Maritime and Coastguard Agency)

 Marine Guidance Note MGN 280 (Maritime and Coastguard Agency)
 Recommendations and Regulations Affecting the Licensing and Operation of Small Craft 

(South West Regional Standing Committee on Safety of Small Craft).
 Inland Waters Small Passenger Boat Code (Maritime and Coastguard Agency)

1.3 The following organisations and individuals have been consulted during the review of Policy:

 Maritime and Coastguard Agency
 South West Regional Ports Association
 Torridge District Council Harbourmaster
 Owners and skippers of vessels licensed under the Council’s licensing scheme
 Boatmen licensed under the Council’s licensing scheme

This Policy was formally adopted by the Council on 23 September 2013. The last update was 
approved on 10th March 2016.

The Policy will be reviewed and updated at least every three years or more frequently if required.

1.4 The Authority will endeavour to adhere to the Policy when considering licensing issues but reserves 
the right to depart from the Policy where there are compelling reasons for doing so.  The Authority 
will provide a written explanation for any departure from policy guidelines.

1.5 The Authority recognises that this Policy cannot cover every conceivable safety scenario or 
guarantee total safety for the public.  Compliance with the policy will help to ensure that, as far as is 
practicable, passengers using licensed/certificated vessels are protected from harm.  However, the 
final responsibility for the safety of passengers rests with the skipper and crew of the vessel.

Page 7



4

2 AIMS AND OBJECTIVES 

2.1 This Policy supports two of the Authority’s strategic goals:

 Stronger, safer, healthier communities – ensuring the safety of persons using licensed 
vessels;

 A prosperous and sustainable economy - not overburdening businesses with unnecessary 
regulation.

2.2 The key objective of the Policy is the protection of public health and safety.  Public safety is at the 
heart of the licensing regime and this aspect of the Policy will generally take precedence over other 
licensing considerations.

2.3 Small commercial vessels providing pleasure trips are an important attraction for tourists and form 
part of the traditional maritime ‘scene’ in Torridge.  The Policy will seek to promote this activity 
wherever practicable provided there is no conflict with policy objective 2.2.

3 THE LICENSING REGIME

3.1 Vessels Operating in the Torridge/Taw Estuary

3.1.1 The Authority licenses vessels in the following categories:

(i) South West Category 1: small boats including beach floats, pedaloes, canoes, water-ski craft, 
power surfboards, sailboards self-drive hovercraft, self-drive motorboats, jet-skis and 
parascending craft let for hire whether in the charge of a licensed boatman or not.

(ii)   South West Category 2:  small boats in the charge of a licensed boatman plying for hire or let for 
hire (e.g. for fishing or tourist trips).  (NB.  The Authority may only license vessels for up to 12 
passengers.  Above this limit, application must be made to the MCA or to another certifying 
authority)

3.1.2 The area of operation is confined to Category C waters as defined by Merchant Shipping Notice 
MSN 1837 (M) and SW Regional Standing Committee on Safety of Small Craft.  These are the 
estuarial waters of the Rivers Torridge and Taw within a line bearing 200 degrees from the 
lighthouse on Crow Point to the shore at Skern Point.

3.1.3 General Requirements - Vessels

3.1.3.1 Construction and Seaworthiness

In order to determine whether a vessel is suitable and safe for commercial use by the public, the 
Authority will require a thorough examination of the vessel, its structure and its fixtures and fittings1.  
The design of the hull, its construction and the materials and equipment used should be appropriate 
for the intended use of the vessel and its area of operation.  The examination of the vessel will be 
undertaken by an authorised person.  This will be either a qualified marine surveyor or a person who 
has the relevant professional qualifications or practical experience and expertise to undertake such 
examinations.  Following examination, the authorised person will submit a report to the Authority on 
the vessel’s general safety and seaworthiness.  A licence will not be granted without a satisfactory 
report from the authorised person. A report will only be accepted if it has been completed no later 
than one month before the date it is submitted to the Council.

1 New vessels should comply with an appropriate standard such as ISO 12215 Small Craft Hull Construction and Scantlings.  
Existing vessels should be able to demonstrate at least five years’ history of safe operation.

Page 8



5

The examination regime will be based on the 5 year cycle specified in the MCA’s Code of Practice 
for the Safety of Small Vessels in Commercial Use for Sport or Pleasure Operating from a 
Nominated Departure as follows:

Year 1 Initial compliance examination.
Physical examination of the vessel carried out by a qualified marine surveyor or   
competent person.  (At least part of the examination must be conducted with the 
vessel out of the water).  

Year 2 Examination of vessel by owner/managing agent.
Year 3 Examination of vessel by owner/managing agent.
Year 4 Examination by surveyor (in water inspection).
Year 5 Examination of vessel by owner/managing agent.

Vessels may be subject to an independent inspection by the Harbour Master or other competent 
Council Officer to check safety equipment and ensure compliance with conditions of licence.

It is the responsibility of the owner of the vessel and/or the person in charge of the vessel to ensure 
that the vessel and its fixtures, fittings and safety equipment are maintained in a safe and seaworthy 
condition.  Any accident or damage which adversely affects the safety of the vessel must be reported 
to the Authority within 24 hours (or, if the accident occurs at a weekend, before the end of the next 
working day) and the vessel made available for inspection by an authorised officer or authorised 
person.  Depending on the severity of the damage, the Authority may decide to suspend the licence 
in the interests of public safety until such time as any damage or defects are repaired.

No alterations to the construction of the vessel may be made without obtaining prior written 
permission from the Authority.  In cases where the Authority is unable to assess the safety 
implications of any alterations, the Authority may seek expert technical advice from another 
licensing/certifying authority, an authorised person or any other organisation which, in the opinion of 
the Authority, has the relevant knowledge and/or expertise.

 In the interests of public safety, the Authority applies a number of restrictions on licences:

 seasonal operation only between 1st April (or Good Friday if this falls before 1st April) and 31st 
October each year;

 vessel must only be operated during daylight hours;
 vessel must only be operated in favourable weather i.e. wind, sea and visibility conditions 

which are deemed by the skipper to be safe for the vessel to operate in.

The responsibility for determining if weather conditions are ‘favourable’ rests with the skipper of the vessel.  In 
the event of a vessel being operated in weather conditions which are unsafe or unfavourable and which result 
in loss of life or injury, liability will rest with the skipper and/or the vessel owner.

3.1.3.2 Safety Management System

In the interests of public safety, the vessel owner/skipper must have a safety management system in 
place for the vessel which should contain, as a minimum:

 a health and safety policy for the protection of crew and passengers
 procedures for dealing with emergencies (e.g. man overboard)
 procedures for reporting accidents including ‘near misses’

It is legal requirement to report all accidents (Merchant Shipping (Accident Reporting and Investigation) 
Regulations 1994.

Page 9



6

3.1.3.3 Insurance

The vessel must have adequate passenger liability and third party insurance cover.  The Authority 
will require applicants to produce a current certificate of insurance with minimum public liability 
indemnity of £2,000,000. £3,000,000

This is the recommended minimum level of public liability indemnity.  Given the potential level of any claim for 
loss of life or injury arising from an accident, boat owners are strongly advised to take advice from their insurer 
on an appropriate level of cover sufficient to meet possible claims.

3.1.3.4  Conditions

The Authority may attach conditions to the grant of a Boat Licence.  Licence conditions will be 
reasonable and proportionate and will generally be attached where the Authority believes they are 
required in the interests of public safety.  The Authority’s current conditions appear at Annex 1.

These are the Authority’s standard conditions applicable to all licensed vessels.  Where necessary, the 
Authority may attach specific conditions to a licence if there is a demonstrable safety requirement.

3.1.3.5   The Licence

A laminated copy of the boat licence must be displayed in a prominent place in the vessel where it 
can be readily seen by passengers and kept on display at all times during the term of the licence.

3.1.4 General Requirements - Boatmen

3.1.4.1 Competence2

In the interests of public safety, the Authority will need to be satisfied that the person in charge of 
the vessel has the necessary level of competence to operate it safely.  

The Authority will require an applicant for a Boatman’s Licence to have obtained one of the 
following qualifications:

 Certificate of Competency – Yachtmaster Ocean*
 Certificate of Competency or Service – Yachtmaster Offshore*
 MCA Boatmasters Licence*
 RYA/DfT Certificate of Competency or Service – Coastal Skipper
 RYA/DfT Advanced Powerboat Certificate
 RYA/DfT Day Skipper Theory & Practical Certificate
 RYA/DfT Powerboat Level 2 Certificate

Certificates of competency should carry the following endorsement: “valid for vessels of up to 24 
metres in length used for commercial purposes”.  

 
On initial application and at any other time the Authority deems appropriate the applicant will be 
required to undergo a test of skipper’s competence. This will be carried out by the Authority’s 
Harbourmaster and will cover a range of appropriate skills and knowledge (see Annex 2).

Page 10



7

Holders of qualifications identified by * above may be subject to an exemption from a boatman 
licence. This will be subject to the competency test and recommendation by the Harbour Master. 

A one-day short range (approved SRC) VHF radio course would be expected for vessels which are 
fitted with VHF equipment.

Where there is no radio, the skipper should know how to use the available equipment to contact 
assistance from any point on the route – e.g. a mobile phone, PA, loud hailer, or mega-phone for 
use on rivers or canals.

An applicant for a Boatman’s Licence must be at least 18 years of age.

3.1.4.2 Medical Examination

In order to be satisfied that a person is medically fit to operate a vessel, the Authority will require 
applicants to undergo a medical examination with a registered GP.  The examination will be required 
at the following intervals:

 On initial application
 Every five years until age 65
 Annually after age 65

The medical examination must be carried out by a registered General Practitioner using the 
Authority’s standard medical report and endorsed with the surgery’s official stamp.  Medical reports 
which do not have the official stamp will not be accepted.   Applicants should note that they must pay 
the cost of the medical examination.  In the event of any dispute about an applicant’s or licence 
holder’s medical condition, the Authority reserves the right to refer the matter to the local NHS 
Occupational Health Department for a second opinion.

Where an applicant can produce current documentary evidence of medical fitness, the Authority 
may, at its discretion, exempt the applicant from the requirement to undertake a medical 
examination.   The Authority will accept the following certificates as exemptions:

 Seafarer’s Medical Certificate (ENG1)
 MCA Medical Certificate (ML5)
 CAA commercial pilot’s licence
 HSE diving medical certificate
 DVLA Group 2 Driver’s Licence
 RNLI medical certificate

A licensed boatman must notify the licensing authority in writing within seven days of diagnosis of 
any adverse medical condition which may render him/her unfit to operate a vessel.  

3.1.4.3 Criminal Convictions

In order to protect public safety, the Authority will vet every applicant for a Boatman’s Licence to 
ensure they are fit and proper persons to deal with the public.  Vetting will be carried out by means of 
a criminal conviction certificate issued under s.112 of the Police Act 1997 (a basic Criminal Record 
Disclosure).  The applicant/licence holder will be responsible for obtaining the disclosure and must 
submit this with their application.  The disclosure must be no more than one month old at the time 
the application is submitted to the Authority.  

Page 11



8

The Authority will require a basic disclosure to be provided on initial application and every three 
years thereafter during the period of the licence.  All such records will be treated in total confidence 
and will only be seen by authorised officers of the Authority.  Applicants should note that they must 
pay the cost of obtaining the disclosure. 

If the disclosure reveals unspent criminal convictions which may, in the opinion of the Regulatory 
Services Manager, put the public at risk, the application will be determined by the Authority’s 
Licensing Committee or a sub-Committee of that Committee.  If the Authority is satisfied that 
granting a licence would put the public at risk of harm, it may refuse to grant/renew, suspend or 
revoke the licence.  

3.1.4.4  Conditions
 

  The Authority may attach conditions to the grant of a Boatman’s Licence.  Licence conditions will be 
reasonable and proportionate and will generally be attached where the Authority believes they are 
required in the interests of public safety.  The Authority’s current conditions appear at Annex 3.

The grant of a licence does not obviate the need for vessels and/or skippers to comply with relevant bye laws 
made by the local/navigation authority or the port/harbour authority for the area in which the vessel operates.

3.1.4.5 The Licence

The licence must be kept in a secure place and made available for inspection on request by an 
authorised officer or authorised person.

3.2 Operators Licence (South West Category 1)

3.2.1 General

No person shall let for hire or reward any licensed vessel in South West Category 1 (when not in 
charge of a licensed boatman) without having first obtained a licence from the Local Authority (herein 
called an Operators Licence).

In the interests of public safety, the Authority will need to be satisfied that the person holding the 
Operators Licence has the necessary level of competence to operate safely.  Depending on the 
proposed activities the applicant may require a competency test with the Harbourmaster.

3.2.2 Marking and Inspection

Every vessel before being let for hire or reward shall have exhibited in some conspicuous part the 
name of the licensed owner and the total number of person allowed to be carried. The Operators 
Licence may be suspended if at any time an authorised Officer of the Local Authority shall be of the 
opinion that any of the vessels on hire is unfit to carry passengers.

3.2.3 Persons in Charge

The Licensee shall be responsible that no motor boat, mechanically propelled boat or sailing boat 
shall be let for hire or reward unless a competent person(s) be placed in charge thereof by the 
licence holder and remain in charge so long as the hire shall last. Such competent person should 
hold a nationally recognised qualification for the activity concerned. 

Persons under 18 years of age must be accompanied by an adult at all times.

Page 12



9

In cases where vessel(s) let for hire are remote from the competent person, then the licensee shall 
ensure that there are sufficient competent persons to maintain visual contact with the hired vessel(s) 
at all times and provide sufficient means of immediate rescue in the event of an incident.

The Licensee shall ensure that the equipment is maintained in a proper state and that hirers are 
provided with sufficient information about the craft and it’s equipment to enable it to be used safely 
for the intended purpose and that hirers are competent for the intended operation. Hirers also need 
to be provided with navigational and tidal information of the estuary and prove an understanding of 
International collision regulations.

The licensee shall ensure that procedures are in place to alert the emergency services in the event 
of an incident, report and record to the licensing authority all incidents that have or could have led to 
injury. 

3.2.4 Specific Requirements

The spectrum of different vessels which may be licenced makes a “one size fits all” approach 
impractical. The Authority will use the guidance provided in Annex 4 of this policy to assist in 
determining what factors are considered during the licensing process.

3.3 Vessels Which Go To Sea

3.3.1 This Authority is no longer authorised by the Maritime and Coastguard Agency to certify vessels in 
accordance with the MCA’s ‘Code of Practice for the Safety of Small Commercial Vessels Operating 
from a Nominated Departure Point (NDP)’ as supplemented by Marine Guidance Note 280. Any 
vessels which go to sea will need to be registered with the MCA or one of their authorised Certifying 
Authorities. Further information can be obtained from the Licensing Team or the MCA direct.

4. ROLE OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE

4.1 Committee Powers

4.1.1 The Licensing Committee is responsible for discharging the Authority’s statutory licensing and 
regulatory function.  The Committee will determine and approve the Authority’s policy in relation to 
the licensing of small commercial vessels.  Any revisions or amendments to the policy must be 
approved by the Committee.  

4.1.2 The Committee will receive reports from the Regulatory Services Manager Lead Licensing Officer, 
as appropriate, on matters relating to the licensing and certification of small commercial vessels. 

4.1.3 The Committee will also, where appropriate, consider contraventions of the law, the Authority’s bye-
laws, conditions of licence and/or codes of practice and may take such action as it considers 
necessary in order to protect the public.  This may include cancellation, suspension and revocation of 
licences and certificates. This function may be carried out by a sub-Committee of the Licensing 
Committee in accordance with established procedures.

4.1.4 Any person aggrieved by a decision of the Licensing Committee (or sub-Committee) has the right to 
appeal to the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of notification of the decision.

4.2    Delegated Powers

Certain functions of the Licensing Committee may be carried out by an authorised officer of the 
Authority under delegated powers.  These delegated powers are set out in the Authority’s 
Constitution which may be viewed at http://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/11933/Constitution.

Page 13

http://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/11933/Constitution


10

5. ENFORCEMENT

5.1 The Authority will work in co-operation with licence holders and the owners/skippers of certified 
vessels to address any safety concerns or instances on non-compliance with the law, bye laws, 
conditions of licence or codes of practice.  Where the authority is unable to satisfactorily resolve such 
issues, it may take such enforcement action as it considers necessary for the protection of the public.

5.2 Enforcement action will be taken in accordance with the Authority’s Licensing Enforcement Policy 
which can be viewed at http://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/14445/Enforcement-and-Regulation  on the 
Authority’s website.

5.3 Enforcement may be carried out by the Licensing Authority acting on its own initiative or in 
conjunction with the Maritime and Coastguard Agency or with any other agency the Authority 
considers to be appropriate to the circumstances of the case.

5.4 The Authority has the power to suspend or revoke licences issued under its own licensing scheme 
(see Annex 1, section 9 and Annex 3, section 8).

6. FEES

The Authority has the power to charge a fee to cover the reasonable costs of administering and 
enforcing its licensing scheme. Fees will normally be reviewed annually.

If a licence is surrendered or cancelled, the Authority may, at its discretion, refund the whole or part 
of the licence fee.  Refunds will be calculated pro-rata on the basis of any whole months remaining 
prior to expiry of the licence.

The Authority’s current fees are as follows:  can be viewed on the Authority’s website

1/4/15 – 31/3/16 1/4/16 – 31/3/17
New application 102.00 104.00Boat Licence

Renewal 93.00 95.00

New application 102.00 104.00

Renewal 93.00 95.00

Boatman’s Licence
or Operator’s Licence

Reduced fee where no 
competence test 
required

62.50 64.00

Page 14

http://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/14445/Enforcement-and-Regulation


11

ANNEX 1 – CONDITIONS ATTACHED TO BOAT LICENCE (TDC LICENSING SCHEME)

1. Limit of Operational Area

The vessel may only be operated in the estuarial waters of the Rivers Torridge and Taw within a line bearing 
200° from the lighthouse at Crow Point to the shore at Skern Point.

2. Restrictions on Operation

The vessel may only be used for the carriage of passengers between 1st April (or Good Friday if that date be 
before 1st April) and 31st October in any year and during the period from one hour before sunrise and one hour 
after sunset.

The vessel may only be used for the carriage of passengers in favourable weather conditions i.e. wind, sea and 
visibility conditions which are deemed by the skipper to be safe for the vessel to operate in.

3. Construction and Seaworthiness

   All boats shall be subject to an annual hull examination which shall be carried out by an authorised person 
approved by the Local Authority.  The vessel must be inspected out of the water at least once every five years.

The surveyor or authorised person shall provide a detailed report on the structural condition of the hull, the 
structural fastenings and the vessel’s safety equipment.  The survey shall include a brief examination of 
propulsion machinery and electrical and pumping installations but only in so far as these affect the seaworthiness 
of the craft.

In carrying out the examination the surveyor or authorised person will be guided by the relevant provisions of the 
Recommendations and Regulations Affecting the Licensing and operation of Small Craft published by the South 
West Regional Standing Committee on the Safety of Small Craft.     

The licensing authority may waive or reduce any requirement or restriction on account of the special 
circumstances of any boat in the trade in which it is engaged.

The Authority’s licensing scheme in no way exempt a vessel from compliance with any relevant statutory 
requirements of the Department for Transport.

4. Insurance

   All licensed boats shall carry public liability and third party insurance with minimum indemnity cover of at least £2 
3 million.  

5. Equipment

Each licensed boat or vessel shall be provided with the equipment listed in the attached schedule for Category 2 
vessels. The equipment shall be maintained in good order and will be inspected annually by an authorised 
person.  Where a higher standard of equipment is required for any boat by reason of any statutory order or any 
requirement of the Department for Transport or the MCA, such higher standard shall be applied.

When the boat or vessel is let for hire or used for the carriage of passengers it shall 

(i) be kept free from oil, refuse and fuel spillages;
(ii) not carry any loose cans of petrol on board under any circumstances;
(iii) not be used for towing any other boat or craft, except in cases of emergency.

6. Safety Lanyard Cord

In vessels which are designed or adapted for the installation of a safety lanyard cord (“kill cord”), the skipper of 
the vessel should wear the cord at all times in accordance with RYA safety guidelines when operating the vessel 
where ever and when ever possible.

Page 15



12

In the event a lanyard cannot be used the boat should be operated at the slowest safe speed for the estuary and 
at least one other person on board should be aware of how to stop the engine immediately.

7. Information in Vessel

A laminated copy of the boat licence must be displayed in a prominent place in the vessel where it can be readily 
seen by passengers and kept on display at all times during the term of the licence.

8. Accidents and Damage 

Any accident, collision, grounding or damage which adversely affects the safety of the vessel shall be reported to 
the Authority within 24 hours or (where the incident occurs at a weekend) before the end of the next working day.  
‘Near misses’ must also be reported as these may indicate potential safety problems and help to avoid future 
accidents.

9. Suspension/Revocation of Licence

The Authority may suspend or, revoke the licence of any vessel on the following grounds:

 that the vessel has suffered damage which renders it unsafe for public use
 failure to comply with the provisions of the Public Health Acts Amendment Act 1907
 failure to comply with a condition of licence
 failure to comply with any Authority harbour bye law
 that the action is necessary or desirable in the public interest

Any person aggrieved by a decision of the Authority to suspend, revoke or to refuse to renew a licence may 
appeal to a Magistrates' Court.  Any appeal must be made within 21 days of notification of the Council’s decision.

 
SCHEDULE OF EQUIPMENT FOR CATEGORY 2 VESSELS

1. Painter (Mandatory in categories 2, 3, 4, 5, 6).

2. Bilge pump (if practicable) and bailer and bucket.

3. Approved alternative means of propulsion (e.g. paddles).

4. Lifejackets available for 100% passengers and crew.  Lifejackets may be of solid buoyancy or inflatable type 
and should have a minimum buoyancy rating of 150 Newtons in accordance with BS/EN 396.  (See general 
note (v)).

5. A minimum of two lifebuoys with buoyant line of at least 18 metres in length.

6. Together with the lifebuoys in (5) above, approved buoyant apparatus to support 100% of passengers and 
crew.

(a) This buoyant apparatus may be made up of standard DfT lifebuoys, buoyant apparatus, built-in 
buoyancy but not lifejackets.

(b) Regard may be had to built-in buoyancy only if adequate and suitable grab lines or rails or bilge keels 
are provided and maintained.

7. Notice stating

(a) Location and effect of local weather signals
(b) Restrictions on area of operation and
(c) Emergency procedures.

8. Sailing craft licensed under these rules shall be provided with one safety harness to B.S.I. specifications for 
each person on board.

Page 16



13

9. Powered craft  > 6 metres in length: a  hand-powered or power driven fire pump with sea hose connections 
capable of delivering a jet of water to any part of the vessel OR 1 multi-purpose fire extinguisher with a 
minimum fire rating of 13A/113B PLUS 1 multi-purpose fire extinguisher with minimum fire rating of 5A/34B.   
Fire extinguishers must bear a valid certificate of inspection and must be tested annually 

Powered craft < 6 metres in length: 1 multi-purpose fire extinguisher with minimum fire rating of 5A/34B.   Fire 
extinguishers must bear a valid certificate of inspection and must be tested annually

10.        A hand-powered or power driven fire pump with sea and hose connections capable of delivering a jet of water 
to any part of the vessel (vessels > 6 metres only)

11. At least one fire bucket with lanyard.

12. Anchor and rope.  Anchors of suitable mass for the type and size of vessel and appropriate for the area of 
operation.  Anchor rope should be of suitable length for the depth of water in the area of operation.

13. Buoyant heaving line at least 30 metres in length with MCA approved rescue quoit.  

14. Boat hook

15. Klaxon, foghorn, or other approved noise signal.

16. A sufficient first aid kit.

17. Navigation lights.

18. Approved orange smoke floats or orange smoke flares (two).

19. Suitable tool kit.

20. One water resistant torch.

21. VHF radio tuned to the appropriate emergency frequency for the area of operation (if applicable)..

22. Knife.

General Notes

(i) The licensing authority may waive or reduce any requirement or restriction having regard to the special 
circumstances of any vessel in relation to its type of construction, standard of equipment and the trade in which 
it is engaged.

(ii) Where a higher standard of equipment of equipment than those recommended is required for any vessel by 
reason of any statutory order or provision or by any requirements of the DfT or MCA such higher standard shall 
be applied.

(iii) Where practicable licensed self-drive motor boats shall be fitted with propeller guards.  Such craft are to be 
fitted with a notice displaying the operational limits of the boat and a warning notice that the craft is not to enter 
areas buoyed for swimmers.

(iv) Where a Calor gas installation is fitted to any licensed vessel, the installation, where practicable, shall comply 
with the provisions of Merchant Shipping Notice No. 984 relating to Open Flame Gas Installations.

(v) Lifejackets relying entirely on oral inflation are not suitable for emergency use unless they are inflated and worn 
at all times while the vessel is being operated.  A minimum of two lifejackets suitable for children must be 
included within the total number of lifejackets provided.

Page 17



14

  ANNEX 2 – COMPETENCE REQUIREMENTS FOR BOATMAN (TDC LICENSING SCHEME)

POINTS FOR TESTING PASS FAIL REMARKS

1.  Local Knowledge (local regulations, signals,   
lights, tidal conditions etc.)

2.  Emergency procedures (fire, collision, man  
overboard etc.)

3.  Regulations for preventing collisions at sea

4.  Distress signals

5.  Use of compass

6.  Use of anchor

7.  Weather reports

8.  Buoyage

9.  Common Chart Symbols

10.  Common Knots

11.  Simple First Aid

12.  Distress and Rescue

13.  Boat handling

14.  Engine knowledge

15.  Passenger safety (safety briefing)

16.  Sea Survival

17.  Communications (use of radio etc.)

Report and Recommendations.......................................................................................................................

........................................................................................................................................................................

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….

Has applicant demonstrated satisfactory level of competence to skipper vessel?        YES/NO      

Signature of Examiner......................................................    Date............................

Print Name……………………………………………………

Page 18



15

       
 ANNEX 3 – CONDITIONS ATTACHED TO BOATMAN’S LICENCE (TDC LICENSING SCHEME)

1. Period of licence

All licences are issued for a period of one year or less with effect from 1st April and shall expire on 31st March the 
following year.  

2. Medical Examination

A medical examination will be required at the following intervals:

 On initial application
 Every five years to age 65
 Annually after age 65

Holders of a Boatman's Licence must notify the Authority in writing within seven days of any deterioration in their 
health that may affect their capabilities of handling a vessel.

3. Vetting of Applicants

An applicant for a Boatman’s Licence must produce a criminal conviction certificate issued under s.112 of the 
Police Act 1997 (a Basic Criminal Disclosure).   Once a licence has been granted, the licence holder will be 
required to produce a new certificate every three years.

The holder of a Boatman’s Licence must notify the Authority in writing within seven days of any criminal 
conviction, caution or other offence incurred during the period of the licence.

4. Passenger Safety

Prior to the commencement of any hiring, a licensed boatman must give a formal safety briefing to all passengers 
on the vessel.  The safety briefing must include:

 an explanation of the location and use of safety equipment such as liferafts, lifejackets, lifebuoys and the 
procedures to be followed in the event of an emergency;

 procedures for the recovery of a person from the water;
 location of fire fighting equipment;
 advice on the weather and sea conditions likely to be encountered, and
 procedures for safe embarkation/disembarkation when entering and leaving harbour.

Safety cards will be considered an acceptable way of providing the above information.

5. Accidents

A licensed boatman must report any accident or damage to the vessel within 24 hours (or, if the accident occurs 
at a weekend, before the end of the next working day) and make the vessel available for inspection by an 
authorised officer of the Authority or an authorised person.

6. Alcohol and Drugs

A licensed boatman or crew member must not under any circumstances operate a licensed vessel when under 
the influence of alcohol and drugs.

If alcohol is provided for consumption by passengers on board the vessel, this must be authorised by way of a 
premises licence issued by the local licensing authority under s.18 of the Licensing Act 2003 or a Temporary 
Event Notice given under s.100 of the Licensing Act 2003.

Page 19



16

6. Qualifications, Certificates

Where a person has been granted a Boatman’s Licence on the basis of an existing skipper’s certificate issued by 
another authority, he/she must notify the Authority in writing within seven days of any suspension or revocation of 
that certificate by the issuing authority.  In such circumstances, the Authority may suspend or revoke the person’s 
Boatman’s Licence or may require him/her to undertake a competence test.  

7. Identity Badge

When in charge of a vessel, a licensed boatman must wear prominently on his/her person or prominently display 
on the vessel an identity badge issued by the Authority.

8. Conduct

A licensed boatman must behave in a civil and courteous manner to passengers and must provide such 
reasonable assistance as passengers may require, particularly when boarding and leaving the vessel.

9. Suspension/Revocation of Licence

The Authority may suspend, revoke or refuse to renew the licence of any licensed boatman on the following 
grounds:

 failure to comply with the provisions of the Public Health Acts Amendment Act 1907
 failure to comply with a condition of licence
 failure to comply with any Council harbour bye law
   conviction for a criminal offence which, in the opinion of the Authority, renders the licence holder 

unsuitable or unfit to hold a licence
   that the action is necessary or desirable in the public interest

Any person aggrieved by a decision of the Authority to suspend, revoke or to refuse to renew a licence may 
appeal to a Magistrates' Court.  Any appeal must be made within 21 days of notification of the Council’s decision.

Page 20



17

ANNEX 4 – LICENSING GUIDANCE

The spectrum of different vessels which may be licenced makes a ‘one size fits all’ approach impractical; the 
following guidance, as detailed in appendix A of the recommendations and regulations affecting the licensing 
and operation of small craft, is provided to assist licensing authorities determine what factors to consider during 
the licensing process.

Beach floats
Pedaloes

Licence the operator 
Restrict area of operation (eg not allowed in areas of strong tidal currents or 
waterways) 
Operator to provide safety boat, the cox’n of which is to be a licenced 
boatman, or means of retrieving floats/pedaloes

Surfboard/bodyboard hire Licence the operator 
Encourage operator to provide safety boat, the cox’n of which is to be a 
licenced boatman, or have alternative means of retrieving surfers 
Consider restricting area of use to within visual range of operator and/or 
lifeguard if practicable 
Encourage participants especially children to wear buoyancy aid

Canoes/ Stand Up 
Paddleboards (SUPs)

Licence the operator. SUP operators should be encouraged to adopt the 
‘BSUPA code of conduct’.
Operator to provide safety boat, the cox’n of which is to be a licenced 
boatman
All participants to wear buoyancy aids or life jackets
Canoes to have sufficient internal buoyancy to remain afloat when filled with 
water
Canoe or SUP to have leash, handrail or rope (as appropriate) to which 
participant can hold onto in the event of entering the water/capsize
Restrict area of operation (eg not allowed in areas of strong tidal currents or 
waterways)

Power surfboard Licence the operator 
Restrict use to areas free of bathers 
Users to wear life jackets or buoyancy aids

Windsurf or sail board Licence the operator, who should be RYA qualified 
Operator to provide safety boat, the cox’n of which is to be a licenced 
boatman 
Participants to wear life jackets or buoyancy aids 
Each board to carry some form of safety signalling device (eg radio or other 
apparatus) 
Restrict use to areas free of bathers 

Hovercraft Licence the operator , who must hold a Certificate of Competence by the 
Hover Club of Great Britain Limited 
Operator to provide safety boat, the cox’n of which is to be a licenced 
boatman 
Users to wear life jackets or buoyancy aids 
Fan(s) to be safely screened 
Each craft to be fitted with control system which automatically throttles back 
Hovercraft registration certificate, plus CAA Hovercraft Safety Certificate 
MSA hovercraft operating permit

Self-drive motorboats Licence the operator 
Operator to provide safety boat, the cox’n of which is to be a licenced 
boatman 
Restrict to areas free of bathers 
Motorboats to be fitted with propeller safety guard
All participants to wear buoyancy aids or lifejackets
Every user to be given safety instruction prior to taking control of the craft, to 
include areas of use, means of attracting attention in case of difficulty, 
navigational orientation (eg explanation of buoyage in the area etc) and 
Collision Regulations

Page 21



18

Personal water craft 
(PWC) eg jet ski, flyboard

Licence the operator 
Restrict use to areas absolutely free of bathers and other water users 
(although it may be permissible to allow jet skis and water-skiers may use the 
same designated area) 
Operator to provide safety boat, the cox’n of which is to be a licenced 
boatman 
Users to wear life jackets or buoyancy aids 
Every user to be given safety instruction prior to taking control of the craft 

Water sking Operator and each boat to be licenced
Operator should hold British Waterski and Wakeboard (BWSW) Coach 
Licence and conform to codes of practice 
At least 2 people in the boat when towing a person on skis (driver and 
observer) when towing a person on skis 
Boat driver should hold at least Ski Boat Driver Level 2 or equivalent 
Restrict use to areas absolutely free of bathers and other water users 
(although it may be permissible to allow jet skis and water-skiers may use the 
same designated area) 
Area of take off and drop off to be marked and direction of circulation to be 
specified 
Every participant to wear life jacket or buoyancy aid

Parascending/ parasailing Operator and each boat to be licenced
Boat cox’n to be licenced
At least 2 people in the boat (driver and observer) when towing a person
Every participant to wear life jacket or buoyancy aid
Restrict to areas absolutely free of bathers

Kite Surfing Operator to be licenced 
Operator to provide safety boat, the cox’n of which is to be a licenced 
boatman 
Restrict to areas free of bathers 
Participants to wear life jacket or buoyancy aid

Water taxi carrying no 
more than 12 passengers

Licence the boat and boatman

Notes 

Operators should be required to display notices stating:
“No person should attempt to use one of these craft unless he or she can swim at least 40 metres fully clothed” 

Safety boats. Where a safety boat is required it must either be afloat or ready for immediate launch. 

Life jackets and buoyancy aids must be CEN or MCA approved. 

Page 22



19

ANNEX 5 – DEFINITIONS

‘Authorised officer’     -    an officer of the licensing authority authorised in writing to carry out 
licensing duties in relation to the licensing of boats, boatmen and small 
commercial vessels.

‘Authorised person’ - a person who by reason of relevant professional qualifications, 
practical experience or expertise is authorised by the certifying 
authority to carry out examination of licensed or certified vessels.

‘Authority’ - Torridge District Council

‘Category C Waters’ - tidal rivers and estuaries and large, deep lakes and lochs where the 
significant wave height could not be expected to exceed 1.2 metres at 
any time.

‘Category D Waters’ - tidal rivers and estuaries where the significant wave height could not 
be expected to exceed 2.0 metres at any time.

‘Certifying Authority’ - an organisation appointed and approved by the Maritime and 
Coastguard Agency for the examination and certification of vessels 
under the Code of Practice for the Safety of Small Commercial 
Vessels Operating from a Nominated Departure Point.

‘Commercial Use’ - use in the course of business for private gain or profit.

‘Competence Test’ - an examination of a person’s skill and ability to operate a vessel 
together with an assessment of their knowledge of the local maritime 
area and regulations.

‘Daylight’ - one hour before sunrise until one hour after sunset.

‘Designated Person’ - a person designated by the Authority to oversee the examination and 
certification of vessels under the NDP Code of Practice.

‘Favourable weather’ - wind, sea and visibility conditions which are deemed by the skipper to 
be safe for a small vessel to operate in.

‘Licensing Authority’ - Torridge District Council Licensing Authority

‘Nominated Departure Point’ - the designated point of departure of the vessel as specified on the 
vessel’s certificate.

‘Passenger’ - any person carried on a vessel except:

a person employed or engaged in the business of the vessel;
a person being carried in the event of an emergency;
a child under one year old

‘To sea’ - beyond category D waters or category C waters if there are no 
category D waters

Page 23



Agenda Item

REPORT OF LEAD LICENSING OFFICER

To: LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

Subject: ALLOCATION OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE PLATE

Date: 27 FEBRUARY 2019 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 

To report to the Committee the decision of the Sub-Committee in respect of the allocation of 
the available hackney carriage plate.
 

1. INTRODUCTION

The Authority currently limits the number of hackney carriage plates it issues. A vehicle 
proprietor surrendered a wheelchair accessible “ring-fenced” plate. The Licensing Committee 
on 12 September 2018 approved the process for allocation of the plate.  

2. REPORT

The available plate was advertised and two applications were received.

The Authority’s Taxi Policy provides a points-based system to determine the applications.

The applications were presented to the Sub-Committee and assessed.

Applicant A was allocated 50 points and Applicant B was allocated 30 points.

The Sub-Committee held an informal meeting with Applicant A to ask additional questions 
and to further assess the applicant’s proposed business operation.

It was decided to offer the plate to applicant A subject to approval by the full Licensing 
Committee.

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
The Council needs to ensure its process is fair and transparent in case of any legal challenge.

Financial Implications
None

Human Resources Implications
None 

Page 24

Agenda Item 8



Sustainability Implications
None

Equality/Diversity
The Council should retain its percentage of wheelchair accessible vehicles.

Risk Management
There is a risk to the Council’s reputation if it does not maintain its percentage of wheelchair 
accessible vehicles or the process is not open and transparent

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
Complies with the Council’s Taxi Policy

Data Protection (GDPR) Implications
Personal details have been withheld from the report.

Lead Member Views
N/A

4. CONCLUSIONS

It is proposed that Application A is offered the available taxi plate.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that members approve the allocation of the taxi plate.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Date of Consultation –
Officers Consulted -

Contact Officer: Chris Parkhouse

Background Papers: Licensing files

Page 25



REPORT OF LEAD LICENSING OFFICER
To: LICENSING COMMITTEE
Subject: SEX ESTABLISHMENT POLICY
Date: 27 FEBRUARY 2019 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:    

To review and update the Authority’s current sex establishment policy

1. INTRODUCTION

The Authority’s current Sex Establishment Policy was last updated and approved by Full Council in 
September 2014. It was recommended that the Policy is reviewed every 5 years.

2. REPORT

There is no statutory requirement for the Authority to have a licensing policy for sex establishments 
but most licensing authorities have developed policies and this is generally considered to be good 
practice.  Without a policy in place, the Authority would have great difficulty determining an 
application for a sex establishment licence and would potentially leave itself open to legal challenge 
in the event of refusal of a licence.

There have been no significant changes to legislation since the last update and the Authority still 
does not have any licensed premises. Therefore, there have been no issues identified.

There have been only minor amendments to the policy and also the addition of an new appendix 
providing information on safeguarding.

Whilst there have been no changes to legislation there has been a significant court case in relation 
to fee setting, Hemming v Westminster City Council. This case ruled that enforcement of non 
licensed premises can not be included in fees and that fees should be at “cost recovery” only. 

It is proposed not to set any fees at this time but to calculate fees on a case by case basis. This will 
ensure that they are based on “cost recovery” only. 

The draft revised policy is included in Appendix B with changes highlighted in red.

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
Without an up to date policy the Authority may potentially leave itself open to legal challenge.

Financial Implications
None 

Human Resources Implications
None

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications
None

Page 26

Agenda Item 9



Equality/Diversity
None

Risk Management
There are legal, reputational and possible financial risks if the Council does not maintain an 
up to date policy.

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
All regulatory activity is carried out in accordance with current policy and procedures.

Data Protection (GDPR) Implications
None

Ward Member and Lead Member Views

4. CONCLUSIONS

The Policy sets out the Authority’s approach to the regulation of sex establishments and the 
standards it will apply to such premises. The proposed revisions to the current Policy are designed 
to keep it up to date, relevant and robust.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended:

1. that Members approve the revised policy for consultation; 
2. that consultation on the draft policy be carried out over a 12 week period and the responses 
reported back to a future committee.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Date of Consultation –
Officers Consulted -

Contact Officer: Chris Parkhouse
Background Papers: Licensing files

Page 27



SEX ESTABLISHMENTS
Licensing Policy

Environmental Health and
Public Protection

Version 2.01 Date January 2014
February 2019

Approved Licensing 
Committee

10 July 2014 Adopted by full Council 1 September 2014

Authors A R Nicholls (TDC)
K Nicholls  (NDDC)

Next Review Date January 2019

Page 28



2

Contents

Page

Foreword 3

Contents

1. Introduction 4
2. The Geographical Area 5
3. Consultation 5
4. The Licensing Objectives 6
5. Integration with Other Policies 6
6. The Licensing Function 6
7. Number and Location of Licensed Premises 7
8. Exempt Premises 7
9. The Licensing Process 7

 9.1   Making an Application 7
 9.2   Objections to Applications 8
 9.3   Determination of Applications 9
 9.4   Licence Conditions 9
 9.5   Refusal of Licences 10
 9.6   Revocation of Licences 11
 9.7   Duration of Licence 11
 9.8   Cancellation of Licences 11
 9.9   Appeals 11

10. Enforcement and Complaints 12
11. Exchange of Information 12
12. Equality and Human Rights Issues 13

Appendices

A Glossary of Definitions 14
B Standard Licence Conditions 16
C Application Procedures  22
D Hearings Procedure 24
E Safeguarding 25

This document can be made available in other formats and languages if required.
Please contact the Council’s PR and Communications Manager for further details.

   Telephone: 01237-428772.       E-mail: Communications@torridge.gov.uk

Page 29



3

Foreword 

This Licensing Policy sets out this Authority’s licensing framework for premises which need to be 
licensed as sex establishments within the meaning of Schedule 3 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as amended by section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 
2009. This legislation is collectively referred to in this document as ‘the Act’.

This Authority adopted Schedule 3 in April 2004 in order to regulate sex establishments.   The 
adoption of Schedule 3 also allows the Authority to set terms and conditions and fees for the grant, 
renewal, variation and transfer of such licences and the number of licences that may be issued in 
the area.
Section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009 was introduced in order to give licensing authorities 
greater control over premises such as lap dancing clubs which are currently regulated under the 
Licensing Act 2003.  This is an important reform which gives local people greater influence over 
this type of sex establishment which has grown in popularity in recent years.
The Authority does not take a moral standpoint in publishing this Policy.  The Authority recognises 
that Parliament has made it lawful to operate a sex establishment, and that such businesses are a 
legitimate part of the retail and leisure industries.  The Council’s role as the Licensing Authority is 
to regulate licensed premises in accordance with the law and Government guidance.

The Authority is not required by law to consult on this Policy but we recognise that applications for 
sex establishments – by their very nature – are often controversial and raise legitimate concerns 
among local residents and businesses in the community.  For this reason we are keen to seek the 
views of relevant individuals and organisations within the community.  Your views are important 
and we will take your comments into consideration when finalising our Policy.

Andy Boyd

Councillor Andy Boyd
Chair, Licensing Committee 

Page 30



4

1. Introduction

NB.  This Policy is intended to provide general guidance only.  It does not constitute a definitive statement of 
law.  Applicants who require legal advice on a specific topic are advised to consult a licensing solicitor. Text in 
the shaded boxes is advisory or explanatory and intended only to give assistance to applicants, statutory 
authorities, residents and businesses. 

1.1 This Statement of Licensing Policy (“the Policy”) draws its authority from the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (“the Act”)  as amended by section 27 of 
The Policing and Crime Act 2009 and has been prepared in accordance with guidance 
issued by the Home Office in March 2010. 

The Policy has four main purposes:

 to assist the Licensing Authority in determining licence applications in a consistent and 
equitable manner,

 to inform and advise applicants, 
 to inform and advise residents and businesses, and
 to inform a court at appeal.

1.2 Torridge District Council (“the Authority”) resolved to adopt Schedule 3 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 with effect from 1st April 2004 in order to 
give the Authority the power to regulate sex establishments1.  On 18th October 2010, the 
Authority resolved to adopt the amendments to the Act made by section 27 of the Policing 
and Crime Act 2009 to enable the Authority to regulate the new class of sexual 
entertainment venue2.

Section 27 gives local authorities more powers to control the number and location of lap dancing clubs and 
similar venues in their area.  Where adopted, these provisions will allow local authorities to refuse an application 
on potentially wider grounds than is permitted under the Licensing Act 2003 and will give local people a greater 
say over the regulation of such premises in their area. (Home Office Guidance 1.3)

1.3 This Statement of Licensing Policy sets out the Authority’s requirements for premises to be 
licensed as sex establishments within the meaning of the Act.  The information contained in 
the appendices and referred to within this policy should be read as an inclusive part of this 
policy document.  The Policy was formally adopted by full Council on 1st September 2014. 

1.4 This Policy will be reviewed every five years.  The Authority may review the Policy earlier at 
its discretion or if required by any legislative changes. The Policy was last reviewed in 2019 
and approved by Licensing Committee on ….TBC…

1.5 The Authority does not take a moral standpoint in publishing this Policy.  The Authority 
recognises that Parliament has made it lawful to operate a sex establishment, and that such 
businesses are a legitimate part of the retail and leisure industries.  The Authority’s role as 
the licensing authority is to regulate licensed premises in accordance with the law and 
Government guidance.

1.6 The Authority may depart from the guidelines set out in this Policy but will only do so in 
exceptional circumstances where there are compelling and justifiable reasons.  The 
Authority will give a full explanation for any such departure from policy.

1.7 The Authority may from time to time exercise its powers under section 115 of the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 to exchange data and information with the police and other partners to 
fulfil its statutory objective of preventing and reducing crime in the area.

1 See Glossary for definition
2 See Glossary for definition

Page 31



5

2. The Geographical Area

2.1 The District of Torridge covers an area of 380 square miles stretching from Appledore in the 
north, Hartland in the west almost to Launceston in the south at the Cornish border.  There 
are three main areas of settlement: the main centre of Bideford with its adjacent towns of 
Northam, Appledore and Westward Ho! and the market towns of Great Torrington and 
Holsworthy.  The population of Torridge at the last census was recorded as 64,0003.   
Torridge is a predominantly rural district with the majority of the population concentrated in 
the main towns noted above.  The remainder of the populace live in scattered villages and 
hamlets.  The average population density is less than I person per hectare, one of the 
lowest figures in Devon and emphasises the rural nature of the district.

2.2 The main employment in Torridge is centred around tourism, manufacturing, distribution 
and agriculture.  Farming is still a widespread part of the local economy although the 
number of persons employed in the industry is relatively low.  

2.3 The Authority recognises that the retail and leisure sector is a major contributor to the 
economy of Torridge.  This Policy has been prepared with the aim of providing clarity for 
applicants in the sex entertainment and retail business whilst at the same time protecting 
the legitimate rights of residents and businesses in the District.

2.1 Torridge District Council is located within the north west of Devon and is predominantly 
rural. The main towns are Bideford, Holsworthy and Great Torrington, with almost half of 
the population living in or close to Bideford/Northam and the remainder of the area fairly 
sparsely populated. The district comprises 984 sq km (380 sq miles).

2.2 The Office for National Statistics (ONS) provided a population estimate for Torridge in mid-
2016 of 66,977. (The 2011 census had a total population of 63,839, showing a 5% increase 
in the Torridge population over the past 5 years).

2.3 At the time of reviewing this policy the Authority does not licence any sex establishments.

3. Consultation

Page 32



6

Consultation on this draft Policy took place between 10th March and 20th June 2014. 
Consultation was conducted with statutory authorities, community groups, local residents, 
faith groups and other relevant organisations. 

The Act is not prescriptive about how the local authority should consult local people.  Consultation should be fair 
and meaningful and local authorities should seek to make any relevant information available to local people in 
order to inform their understanding (Home Office Guidance 2.20).  The Cabinet Office recommends a twelve 
week consultation period.

4 Licensing Objectives

4.1 The Act does not prescribe any licensing objectives.  However, this Authority believes it is 
desirable, in the interests of clarity and transparency, to define the key objectives which will 
underpin the regulation of sex establishments in its District. The objectives are:

 to prevent sex establishments from causing crime, harm or nuisance to the public;
 to ensure that sex establishments are located in areas where they will not have an 

adverse impact on the local community and amenities;
 to protect performers
 to promote equality in sex licensing.

4.2 The Authority will attach the greatest importance to the promotion of the licensing 
objectives when determining applications and regulating licensed premises.

5 Integration with other Policies

5.1 The Authority will endeavour to apply this Policy in a way which is consistent with other 
relevant policies/strategies.

5.2 This Policy supports the Authority’s corporate goal of securing stronger, safer, healthier 
communities.

5.3 Whilst this Policy stands alone, sex establishments may often require other consents in 
order to provide other facilities.  In particular, applicants wishing to sell alcohol and/or 
provide regulated entertainment or late night refreshment are advised to have regard to this 
Authority’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2014-19 which sets out licensing requirements for 
those activities.  The Policy can be viewed at www.torridge.gov.uk/licensing.

6. The Licensing Function

6.1 This Policy sets out the general principles the Authority will apply when determining 
applications for licences for sex establishments.  It explains the application process and 
provides information on what is expected of applicants.  It also explains the procedure for 
making objections to licence applications.   

6.2 In discharging its licensing function, the Authority will have regard to:

 The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982
 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 (in particular s.17)
 The Licensing Act 2003
 The Human Rights Act 1998
 The Policing and Crime Act 2009 (s.27)
 the Provision of Services Regulations 2009
 the Regulators’ Compliance Code
 the Authority’s current Safer North Devon Community Safety Strategy

Page 33



7

 the Authority’s Strategic Plan
 the Authority’s Licensing Enforcement Policy
 Home Office Guidance: Sexual Entertainment Venues (March 2010)

(Reference to legislation shall include any amendment, extension, application or re-enactment and includes any 
subordinate laws for the time being in force made under them and all orders, notices, codes of practice and 
guidance made under them). The Authority will also have regard to any new legislation that may be 
implemented after this policy has been implemented.

6.3 At the time of drafting reviewing this policy, this Authority has no licensed sex 
establishments and no premises likely to fall within the definition of a sexual entertainment 
venue.

7. Number and Location of Licensed Premises
7.1 The Authority recognises that, by virtue of s.12 (4) of Schedule 3 to the Act, it can limit the 

number of sex establishments in any locality within its District.  That number may be nil.  
The Authority has not chosen not to set a limit and will therefore determine each application 
on its merits having regard to the likely impact on any given locality.

7.2 Whilst the Authority has not imposed a limit on the number of premises that may be 
licensed in any locality, the Authority will not license premises in proximity to:

(a)   a residential area;
(b) premises, areas (or access routes to premises or areas) which are designed for or   

attract children or families, such as leisure centres, schools, play areas, parks, 
children’s centres, youth clubs, nurseries or other similar establishments; 

(c)   a place of public religious worship;
(d) historic buildings;
(e) cultural facilities (e.g. museums, art galleries, libraries);  
(f)   educational establishments; 
(g)   any premises which caters for, or is used by vulnerable children or adults
(h)   community facilities and public buildings; 
(i)   any area which is focus for tourist activity;
(j)   an area designated for social or economic regeneration
(k)   an area with a history of significant crime or social difficulties.

8. Exempt Premises  
8.1 The following are not sexual entertainment venues for the purposes of this Policy:

 sex cinemas and sex shops4; 

 premises at which the provision of relevant entertainment5  is such that

(i) there have not been more than eleven occasions on which relevant entertainment 
has been so provided which fall (wholly or partly) within the period of 12 months; 
(ii) no occasion has lasted for more than 24 hours; and 
(iii) no occasion has begun within the period of one month beginning with the end of any 
previous occasion on which relevant entertainment has been so provided 

8.2 For the purposes of this policy, relevant entertainment is provided if, and only if, it is 
provided, or permitted to be provided, by or on behalf of the organiser6 before an audience 
and involves partial or full nudity7.

4 See Glossary for definitions
5 See Glossary for definition
6 See Glossary for definition
7 See Glossary for definition

Page 34



8

9. The Licensing Process  

9.1 Making an Application

9.1.1 Whilst not a legal requirement, the Authority will normally expect that applications for 
licences for permanent commercial premises should be from businesses with planning 
consent for the property concerned.

9.1.2 The Authority expects that applicants will consult local residents, businesses and/or 
community groups in the vicinity of the premises so far as is reasonably practicable prior to 
submitting a formal application.  

9.1.3 Applicants are advised to have regard to the Authority’s standard licence conditions for sex 
establishments in order to ascertain the operational standards expected and the types of 
controls typically required (see Appendix B).

9.1.4 Applications must state the full address of the premises to be licensed. Applications in 
respect of a vehicle, vessel or stall must also state where it is to be used as a sex 
establishment.

9.1.5 Applications should be made in accordance with the procedures set out at Appendix C. 
Application forms can be downloaded from the Authority’s web-site, completed online or are 
available upon request to the Licensing Team.

9.1.6 An application form and relevant documentation for the new licence, renewal, variation or 
transfer must be completed and returned with the appropriate fee as prescribed in the 
Authority’s Schedule of Fees and Charges. 

9.2 Objections to Applications 

9.2.1 Any person may make an objection to an application for a sex establishment licence.  
Objectors do not have to live in the vicinity of the premises and may include residents, 
residents’/tenants’ associations, community associations, and trade associations.  
Councillors and MPs may also raise objections.  Elected councillors of this Authority may 
represent interested parties, provided they do not also sit on the Licensing Sub-Committee 
determining the application in question. The police are a statutory consultee for all 
applications.

9.2.2 Persons objecting to an application must state the grounds on which the objection is made.  
Objections should:

 be made in writing; 
 indicate the name and address of the person or organisation making the 

representation;
 indicate the premises to which the objection relates; 
 indicate the proximity of the premises to the person making the representation. 

9.2.3 Objections may only be made within the period of 28 days following the date on which the 
application was given to the Licensing Authority.  

9.2.4 The Licensing Authority will not normally consider any objection that does not contain the 
name and address of the person making it.  However, names and addresses of persons 
making representations will not be disclosed except with their written permission. 

9.2.5 Objections that are repetitious, frivolous or vexatious will be disregarded.  A frivolous 
objection is generally taken to be one that is lacking in seriousness.  A vexatious objection 

Page 35



9

is generally taken to be one which is repetitive, without foundation or made for some other 
reason such as malice. 

9.2.6 The Authority will not accept objections made on moral grounds.

9.2.7 Where objections are made and accepted, the Licensing Authority will provide copies to the 
applicant. 

 

9.3 Determination of Applications

9.3.1 The powers of the Licensing Authority under the Act may be carried out by the Licensing 
Committee or by a sub-Committee of the Licensing Committee.  

9.3.2 When determining a licence application, the overriding principle adopted by this Authority 
will be that each application will be determined on its merits.  The Authority will have regard 
to the relevant legislation, supporting regulations, guidance issued by the Home Office and 
this Statement of Licensing Policy.  

9.3.3 When determining applications, the Licensing Authority will take account of any comments 
made by the Chief Officer of Police and any relevant objections.

9.3.4 Where no objections are received, the application will be granted on the terms applied for, 
subject to any conditions imposed by the Licensing Authority.   Where relevant objections 
are received and not withdrawn, the application will be determined at a hearing8 before a 
Licensing sub-Committee.  This will normally be held within 20 working days of the end of 
the period during which objections may be made.  The sub-Committee will give clear 
reasons for its decision.  The Authority has established its own hearing procedures as 
provided for under the Licensing Act regulations and these are included at Appendix D.  

9.3.5 The names and addresses of objectors will not be disclosed to applicants or published in 
public reports without the objector’s consent. Such details will only be made available to 
Councillors sitting on the Licensing Sub-Committee.

9.3.6 The grant of a licence does not exempt applicants from obtaining permissions or 
authorisations required under any legislation, byelaw, order or regulation other than 
Schedule 3 of the Act.

9.4 Licence Conditions 

9.4.1 The Authority has the power to make regulations prescribing standard conditions which 
may be applied to a licence for a sex establishment.    The standard conditions which this 
Authority will attach to a licence are shown at Appendix B.  Where it is reasonable and 
necessary, the Authority may modify these conditions or attach additional conditions to a 
licence.

9.4.2 Conditions will generally relate to matters falling within the control of the licence holder and 
may include:

 the opening and closing hours of the premises
 displays or advertisements on or in the premises
 the visibility of the interior of sex establishments to passers-by
 any change of a sex cinema to a sex shop or a sex shop to a sex cinema

8 See Glossary 
Page 36



10

together with any other matters which the Authority considers relevant to the application.

9.4.3 Conditions will be appropriate, reasonable and proportionate and will be tailored to 
individual premises having regard to the need to promote the Authority’s licensing 
objectives.

9.5 Refusal of Licences

9.5.1 Except where the Authority are prohibited from granting, renewing, varying or transferring a 
licence, the Authority will not refuse a licence without first:

 Notifying the applicant or holder of the licence in writing of the reasons;
 Giving the applicant or holder of the licence the opportunity of appearing and 

making representations before a Licensing Sub Committee.

9.5.2 Mandatory Grounds for Refusal (s.12(1))

The Act requires the Authority to refuse to grant or transfer a licence to: 

(a) A person under the age of 18;
(b) A person who is for the time being disqualified from holding a licence;
(c) A person who is not resident in an EU state or was not so resident throughout the 

period of 6 months immediately preceding the date upon which the application was 
made;

(d) A body corporate which is not incorporated in an EU state; or
(e) A person who has, within the period of 12 months immediately preceding the date upon 

which the application was made, been refused the grant or renewal of a licence for the 
premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in respect of which the application is made, unless the 
refusal has been reversed on appeal.

9.5.3 Discretionary Grounds for Refusal (s.12(2 & 3))

An application for grant or renewal of a licence may be refused on one or more of the 
following grounds:

(a) that the applicant is unsuitable to hold the licence by reason of having been convicted 
of an offence or for any other reason (see 9.5.5);

(b) that if the licence were to be granted, renewed or transferred the business to which it 
relates would be managed by or carried on for the benefit of a person, other than the 
applicant, who would be refused the grant, renewal or transfer of such a licence if he 
made the application himself;

(c) that the number of sex establishments in the relevant locality that the application is 
made is equal to or exceeds the number which the Authority considers is appropriate 
for that locality (nil may be an appropriate number for these purposes).

(d) that the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate having regard to: 

 the character of the relevant locality9;
 the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; or
 the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in respect 

of which the application is made.

9.5.4 When considering discretionary grounds for refusal under s.12(3)(d) of the Act, the 
Authority may take into consideration the following factors:

 the type of activity and the proposed hours of operation

9 See glossary
Page 37



11

 the likelihood of any adverse impact arising as a result of a licence being granted for 
a premises in a locality where there are already existing sex establishments

 crime and disorder issues
 the likelihood of any noise or disturbance being caused by the premises
 the type and character of other businesses in the locality
 the physical structure, condition and appearance of the premises (see Appendix B).

9.5.5   Suitability of Applicant

When determining whether an applicant is a suitable person to hold a licence, the   
Authority may take into consideration the following factors:

 the honesty and integrity of the applicant
 any convictions, cautions or offences10

 the operation of existing or previous licences held by the applicant and their track record of   
compliance

 the experience and knowledge of the type of sex establishment the applicant intends to  
operate

 the applicant’s ability to comply with the Authority’s licensing requirements and to minimise 
the impact of the business on local residents and businesses

 any reports about the applicant received from the police or any other reputable source
 the managerial competence of the applicant
 evidence of robust management structure, policies and procedures clearly setting out how 

the premises will be operated to promote the Authority’s licensing objectives
 policies for the protection and welfare of performers
 evidence that the applicant has appropriate measures in place to protect the public (e.g.  

transparent charging, freedom from solicitation etc.)

9.6 Revocation of Licences

9.6.1 The Authority may revoke a licence: 

 on any of the mandatory grounds specified in paragraph 9.5.2; and
 on either of the discretionary grounds specified in paragraph 9.5.3 (a) and (b).

9.6.2 The Authority will not revoke a licence without first giving the holder of the licence the 
opportunity of appearing and making representations before a Licensing Sub Committee.

9.7 Duration of Licences

9.7.1 Licences will generally be issued on an annual basis but can be issued for a shorter term if 
deemed appropriate.

9.7.2 Where the Authority is satisfied that it is necessary for the purposes of winding up the 
estate of a deceased licence holder, it may extend the term of the licence (normally for 
three months or such other period the Authority considers appropriate).

 10 The Authority will require applicants and any company directors and/or manager of the premises to provide a 
Basic Criminal Disclosure or the results of a Subject Access Request with their application (see Appendix C).

Page 38



12

9.8 Cancellation of Licences

9.8.1 The licence-holder may surrender the licence at any time and may request the Authority in 
writing to cancel the licence. 

9.8.2 In the event of the death of the licence-holder, the licence will be deemed to have been 
granted to his personal representatives and will remain in force for three months from the 
date of death, unless previously revoked.

9.9 Appeals 

9.9.1 Section 27 of the Act provides for appeals against the decisions of the Authority.  An appeal 
must be made to the local magistrates’ court within 21 days of the date of the Licensing 
Authority’s decision.

9.9.2 An appeal may be made in the following circumstances:

 refusal of an application for the grant, renewal or transfer of a licence.
 refusal of an application to vary terms, conditions, or restrictions on or subject to which 

any licence is held.
 a grievance relating to any term, condition or restriction on or subject to which a licence 

is  held.
 revocation of a licence.

9.9.3 There is no right of appeal for objectors. There is a right of appeal against refusal on 
mandatory grounds, only where the appellant alleges the ground did not apply to them. 
There is no right of appeal against refusal on the grounds that there are sufficient sex 
establishments in the locality or that the grant of a licence would be inappropriate having 
regard to the character of the locality, use of premises in the vicinity and the layout, 
character, condition and location of the premises.

9.9.4 A person wishing to appeal against a decision of the Authority about a sex establishment is 
strongly advised to seek legal advice prior to commencing any action in a court of law.

10. Waiver 

10.1 Section 7(4) of the Act allows the Authority to waive the requirement for a licence where it 
considers this would be unreasonable or inappropriate.

10.2 The test of what might be considered ‘unreasonable’ or ‘inappropriate’ will be made on the 
facts of each individual case but may include:

 minor or temporary events (e.g. sale of sex articles at a trade show or exhibition)
 events where the provision of sex articles is incidental or ancillary to the event itself
 a one-off screening of an erotic or sexually explicit film at a cinema (subject to 

BBFC film classification criteria).

10.3 The Authority may grant a waiver for such period as it sees fit and may terminate the waiver 
by giving 28 days notice in writing.

11 Enforcement and Complaints

11.1 Where possible, the Authority will give early warning to licence holders of any concerns 
about problems at a particular premises and of the steps required for improvement.

Page 39



13

11.2 The Authority will have regard to the Regulators’ Compliance Code and the Better 
Regulation Delivery Office’s five Principles of Good Regulation. The Authority will carry out 
its regulatory functions in a fair, open and consistent manner. 

11.3 Enforcement will also be carried out in accordance with the Authority’s Licensing 
Enforcement Policy which sets out clear standards and procedures. 

Enforcement will be: 

 proportionate - action will be commensurate with the offence
 accountable - action will be justifiable and subject to public scrutiny
 consistent - action will be fairly and equitably applied
 transparent - the reasons for action will be clearly explained
 targeted - action will be based on risk

11.4 Where possible and appropriate the Authority will give early warning to licence holders of 
any concerns about problems identified at premises and of the need for improvement 
(duplicate of 11.1)

11.5 The Authority recognises the interests of both residents and businesses and will work 
closely with partners, to assist licence holders to comply with the law and any conditions 
attached to the licence.  However, action will be taken against those who commit serious 
offences, persistently break the law or fail to comply with conditions of the licence. 

11.5 Complaints about licensed premises should be made in writing and addressed to: The 
Licensing Manager Team , Torridge District Council, Bridge Buildings Riverbank House, 
Bideford, Devon.  EX39 2HT 2QG or e-mailed to licensing@torridge.gov.uk 

12 Equality and Human Rights Issues

12.1 In developing this policy, the Authority recognises its responsibilities under the Equality Act 
2010, to consider the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination and to promote equal 
opportunities. The Policy therefore supports and is supported by North Devon and Torridge 
District Council’s Joint Inclusive Equality Scheme and any equality issues will be 
addressed in an Equality Impact and Needs Assessment.

12.2 The Human Rights Act 1998 incorporates the European Convention on Human Rights and 
makes it unlawful for a local authority to act in a way that is incompatible with a convention 
right. The Authority will have regard to the Human Rights Act when exercising its licensing 
functions.

12.3 Conditions relating to disabled access will not be attached to licences, as this would 
duplicate existing statutory requirements. The Authority therefore takes this opportunity to 
remind applicants and licensees of their duties under the Equality Act 2010 and 
encourages individuals to provide adequate and appropriate facilities to enable the 
admission of disabled people.

Page 40

mailto:licensing@torridge.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@torridge.gov.uk


14

APPENDIX A – Glossary of Definitions

‘Hearing’ – quasi-judicial arrangement for determination of applications before a Licensing sub-
Committee.  This will consist of a ‘bench’ of three councillors drawn from the Council’s Licensing 
Committee.  The hearing will normally take place in public in accordance with the Authority’s 
established procedures (see Appendix D)

‘Nudity’ - in the case of a woman, exposure of her nipples, pubic area, genitals or anus; in the case 
of a man, exposure of his pubic area, genitals or anus.

‘Organiser’ - person who is responsible for the organisation or management of the relevant 
entertainment or the premises.

‘Relevant entertainment’ -  any live performance or live display of nudity which is of such a nature 
that, ignoring financial gain, it must reasonably be assumed to be provided solely or principally for 
the purpose of sexually stimulating any member of the audience (whether by verbal or other 
means).  An audience includes an audience of one. 

‘Relevant locality’ – the Act does not define relevant locality but, for the purposes of this policy, the 
Authority, when determining relevant locality, may consider the following matters:

 any area with a statutorily defined boundary (e.g. a parish or ward)
 an area with a natural boundary such as a river or major road
 a clearly defined area of a town such as a recognised retail/shopping centre
 a clearly defined residential area or housing development
 a business park or industrial estate

Each case will be considered individually.

‘Sex Establishment’ is defined under the Act as a ‘sex shop’, a ‘sex cinema’ or a ‘sexual 
entertainment venue’. It includes any premises, vehicle, vessel or stall used as a sex establishment 
but does not include a private dwelling to which the public are not admitted.

 ‘Sex Shop’ - any premises, vehicle, vessel or stall used for a business which consists to a 
significant degree of selling, hiring, exchanging, lending, displaying or demonstrating:

(a) sex articles; or
(b) Other things intended for use in connection with, or for the purpose of stimulating or 

encouraging: 
(i)     sexual activity; or
(ii)     acts of force or restraint which are associated with sexual activity.

‘Sex Article’ - anything made for use in connection with, or for the purpose of stimulating or 
encouraging: 

(a)   sexual activity; or
(b)   acts of force or restraint which are associated with sexual activity

or any of the following: 

(a) any article containing or embodying matter to be read or looked at or anything intended to 
be used, either alone or as one of a set, for the reproduction or manufacture of any such 
article; and 

(b) any recording of vision or sound, which: 
(i) is concerned primarily with the portrayal of, or primarily deals with or relates to, or is 

intended to stimulate or encourage, sexual activity or acts of force or restraint which 
are associated with sexual activity

Page 41



15

(ii) is concerned primarily with the portrayal of, or primarily deals with or relates to 
genital organs or urinary or excretory functions. 

‘Sex Cinema’ - any premises, vehicle, vessel or stall used to a significant degree for the exhibition 
of moving pictures, by whatever means produced, which:

(a) are concerned primarily with the portrayal of, or primarily deal with or relate to, or are 
intended to stimulate or encourage:

(i) sexual activity; or
(ii) acts of force or restraint which are associated with sexual activity;

(b) are concerned primarily with the portrayal of, or primarily deal with or relate to, genital 
organs or urinary or excretory functions, but does not include a dwelling-house to which 
the public is not admitted. 

‘Sexual entertainment venue’ -  any premises at which relevant entertainment is provided before a 
live audience for financial gain of an organiser. For the purposes of the Act it does not matter 
whether the financial gain arises directly or indirectly from the performance or display of nudity.

‘Vessel’  includes any ship, boat, raft or other apparatus constructed or adapted for floating on the water.

Page 42



16

APPENDIX B

STANDARD CONDITIONS APPLICABLE
TO LICENCES FOR SEX ESTABLISHMENTS

These Conditions are made by Torridge District Council under paragraph 13(1) of Schedule 3 of 
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended) and come 

into effect on 1st September 2014.

 The Conditions are divided into five parts as follows:

Part I Definitions and Interpretation

Part 2 Conditions applying to all premises

Part 3 Conditions applying to Sex Shops

Part 4  Conditions applying to Sex Cinemas

Part 5  Conditions applying to Sexual Entertainment Venues

PART I  DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

1.1 In these Regulations the following expressions shall have the following meanings:

i) “Act” means the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions Act) 1982.

ii) “Approval or consent of the Council” means approval or consent of the Council in writing. 

iii) “Authorised Officer” means an officer of the Council authorised in writing to undertake 
duties under the provisions of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982.

iv) “Premises” means a building or part of a building and any forecourt yard or place of storage 
used in connection with a building or part of a building which is the subject of a licence for a 
sex establishment granted under Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982.

v) “Relevant Entertainment” means any live performance or live display of nudity which is of 
such a nature that, ignoring financial gain, it must reasonably be assumed to be provided 
solely or principally for the purpose of sexually stimulating any member of an audience 
(whether by verbal or other means).

vi) “Sex establishment”, “Sex Cinema”, “Sex Shop”, “Sex Article” and “Sexual Entertainment 
Venue” have the meanings ascribed to them in Schedule 3 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982.

vii) “The Council” means Torridge District Council.

1.2  The grant of a licence for a sex establishment shall not be deemed to convey any approval 
or consent which may be required under any other legislation, order or regulation other than 
Schedule 3 of the Act.

1.3  The Council reserves the right to add to, modify or dispense with these conditions.

Page 43



17

1.4  All applications for modification or dispensation of these conditions shall be made in writing 
and shall state the reasons why it is desired to modify or dispense with these conditions.

1.5 Premises licensed as a Sex Shop, Sex Cinema or Sexual Entertainment Venue shall be 
used only for the purposes for which the licence was granted and shall not be used, wholly 
or in part, for any other purposes specified in Schedule 3 of the Act.

PART 2  CONDITIONS APPLYING TO ALL PREMISES

2.1 Exhibition of Licence

2.1.1 A copy of the licence and these conditions will be displayed in a prominent place on the 
premises where they can easily be seen and read by the public.

2.2 Times of Opening

2.2.1 A sex establishment will only be open to the public on the days and hours specified in the 
licence.

2.2.2 The premises shall not open on Sundays or any Bank Holidays or any public holidays 
without the prior consent of the Council.

2.3 Condition, Layout and External Appearance of the Premises

2.3.1 The premises must be maintained in accordance with the plan submitted with the 
application and approved by the Council. Alterations to the premises will not be permitted 
without the prior consent of the Council and may require an application to vary the licence 
under s.18 of the Act.

2.3.2 All parts of the premises shall be kept in good repair and in a clean condition to the 
satisfaction of the Council.

2.3.3 The number, size and position of all doors, openings or means of access shall comply with 
the following requirements:

(i) All such doors or openings shall be clearly indicated on the inside by the word “exit”/graphic 
type.

(ii) Doors and openings which lead to parts of the premises to which the public are not 
permitted to have access shall have notices placed over them marked, “private”.

(iii) Save in the case of emergency, no access shall be permitted through the premises to any  
adjacent premises.

2.3.4 The external doors to the premises shall be fitted with a device to provide for their 
automatic closure and such devices shall be maintained in good working order.

2.3.5 No sign, notice, advertisement, display or image or anything of a similar nature must be 
displayed outside the premises without the prior approval of the Council.

2.3.6 The entrances to the premises shall be constructed in such a way and of a material or 
covered with a material which will prevent passers by from seeing the interior of the 
premises.

2.3.7 Windows and openings to the premises other than entrances shall be of a material or 
covered with a material which will prevent passers by from seeing the interior of the 
premises.

2.4 Alterations, Additions and Change of Use
Page 44



18

2.4.1 No change of use of any part of the premises from that approved by the Council shall be 
made without the prior consent of the Council and Devon and Cornwall Constabulary.

2.4.2 No change of use of the premises for any purpose specified in Schedule 3 of the Act will be 
permitted without the prior consent of the Council and Devon and Cornwall Constabulary.

2.4.3 Alterations or additions either internal or external and whether permanent or temporary to 
the structure, lighting or layout of the premises must not be made without the prior consent 
of the Council.

2.5 Closed Circuit Television (CCTV)

2.5.1 A CCTV system shall be installed and maintained to the satisfaction of Devon and Cornwall 
Constabulary and the Council. 

2.5.2 The CCTV shall cover all entrances and exits to the premises and all internal areas open to 
the public.  The system must be installed and fully operational before the premises opens to 
the public.

2.5.3 All cameras shall continually record whilst the premises are open to the public and all 
recordings shall be retained for at least 30 days and made available on request by the 
police or by an authorised officer.

2.6 Management of the Premises

2.6.1 The licence holder and all staff at the premises must be fully aware of and conversant with 
the conditions of the licence.

2.6.2 The licence holder shall maintain good order in the premises at all times when it is open to 
the public.

2.6.3 The licence holder shall take all reasonable precautions for the safety of the public and 
employees and must retain effective control over all parts of the premises.

2.6.4 The licence holder (or a responsible person aged 18 years or over nominated by him in 
writing in his absence) shall be in charge of and remain on the premises during the whole 
time they are open to the public. Such nomination shall be made available for inspection on 
request by the police or by an authorised officer. The person in charge shall not be 
engaged on any duties which will prevent him from exercising general supervision of the 
premises and he/she shall be assisted as necessary by suitable adult persons. 

2.6.5 The licence holder or the responsible person shall maintain a daily register to be kept on 
the premises in which there shall be recorded the names and addresses of those employed 
in the sex establishment.  The register is to be completed each day prior to the sex 
establishment opening for business and must be made available for inspection on request 
by the police or by an authorised officer.

2.6.6 The licence holder shall ensure that during the hours the sex establishment is open for 
business every employee (with the exception of performers whist performing relevant 
entertainment) wears a badge of a type to be approved by the Council bearing the 
photograph of the employee and indicating his name and that she/he is an employee.

2.6.7 A notice showing the name of the person responsible for the management of the sex 
establishment must be prominently displayed within the premises throughout the period 
during which he/she is responsible for its management.

2.6.8 Where the licence holder is a body corporate or an unincorporated body, any change of 
director, company secretary or other person responsible for the management of the body is 

Page 45



19

to be notified in writing to the Council within 7 days of such change.  .

2.6.9 The licence holder shall ensure that no part of the premises is used by prostitutes (male or 
female) for the purposes of soliciting or any other immoral purposes. ‘Soliciting’ includes the 
distribution of leaflets.

2.6.10 The licence holder, employee or any other person shall not seek to obtain custom by 
means of personal solicitation outside or in the vicinity of the premises.

2.6.11 The licence holder shall ensure that the public are not admitted to any part or parts of the 
premises other than those which have been approved by the Council and are so 
designated on the plan of the premises.

2.7 Admission to the Premises 

2.7.1 No person under the age of 18 shall be admitted to the premises, employed in the business 
of the sex establishment, or permitted to work in the premises on a self-employed basis.

2.7.2 At each entrance to the premises there shall be prominently displayed a notice prohibiting 
entry to all persons under 18 years of age.  A notice must also be prominently displayed at 
the entrance stating that any person suspected of being under 25 years of age will be 
required to produce valid photographic identification that they are over 18 years of age.

2.7.3 The licence holder or responsible person shall ensure that all persons employed on the 
premises are aware of the age restriction on clients and that they exclude or remove from 
the premises any person attempting to evade the restriction.

2.7.4 The licence holder must maintain a Refusals Log to record any occasion when a person is 
refused entry to the premises.  The Log will be made available on request by the police or 
by an authorised officer.

2.7.5 Any person who appears to be drunk/intoxicated or under the influence of illegal drugs must 
not be admitted to the premises.

2.7.6 Police officers, authorised officers and officers of other authorised agencies shall be 
admitted immediately at all reasonable times and at any time the premises are open for 
business.

PART 3   CONDITIONS  APPLYING TO SEX SHOPS

3.1 All sex articles and other things displayed for sale, hire, exchange or loan within a sex shop 
shall be clearly marked to show the price charged.

3.2 All printed matter offered for sale, hire, exchange or loan shall be available for inspection 
prior to purchase, hire, exchange or loan and a notice to this effect is to be prominently 
displayed within the premises.

3.3 No film shall be sold or supplied unless it has (a) been passed by the British Board of Film 
Classification and bears a certificate to that effect or (b) approved by the Council and is a 
reproduction authorised by the owner of the copyright of the film so certified.

3.4 No moving picture or display or recorded sound of any description however provided shall 
be permitted on the premises except for a period necessary to check a recording for fault 
by the licence holder or for a period of not more than one minute for the sole purpose of 
demonstrating it to a prospective purchaser or hirer of the article in question and such 
display shall be in a booth to which there shall only be permitted the prospective purchaser 
or hirer and any one person employed by the licence holder to sell or hire such articles. The 

Page 46



20

licence holder must not make any charge or permit any charge to be made for such a 
display as mentioned in this condition.

3.5 All refuse produced on the premises and materials, goods or articles discarded for any 
reason shall be securely stored within the premises and delivered in sealed containers to 
the designated refuse collection point.

3.6 The licence holder shall make such provision for the reception of goods and articles for 
sale, hire or display on the premises so that they are received directly into the premises and 
not subject to storage for any period of time outside the premises on any pavement, 
footpath, forecourt or yard.

Part 4   CONDITIONS APPLYING TO SEX CINEMAS

4.1 Film Categories

The categories U, PG, 12, 15, 18 and RESTRICTED 18 have the following effect:

U Universal.- Suitable for all
PG Parental Guidance. Some scenes may be unsuitable for

 young children.
12 Passed only for persons of 12 years and over.
15 Passed only for persons of 15 years and over.
18 Passed only for persons of 18 years and over.

RESTRICTED (18) The ‘R18’ category is a special and legally restricted 
classification primarily for explicit works of consenting sex 
or strong fetish material involving adults. Films may only be 
shown to adults in specially licensed cinemas, and video 
works may be supplied to adults only in licensed sex shops. 
‘R18’ videos may not be supplied by mail order.

Page 47



21

4.2 Exhibition of Films

4.2.1 No film shall be exhibited at the premises unless it has been passed by the British Board of 
Film Classification as a U, PG, 12, 15, 18 or RESTRICTED 18 film and no notice of 
objection to its exhibition has been given by the Council; or it has been passed by the 
Council as a U, PG, 12, 15, 18 (North Devon) film.

4.2.2 A representation or written statement of the terms of any certificates given by the British 
Board of Film Classification shall be shown on the screen immediately before the showing 
of any film to which it relates and the representation or statement shall be shown for long 
enough and in form large enough for it to be read from any seat in the auditorium.

4.2.3 Where the Council has given notice in writing to the licence holder of the premises 
prohibiting the exhibition of a film on the ground that it contains material which, if exhibited, 
would offend against good taste or decency or would be likely to encourage or incite to 
crime or to lead to disorder or to be offensive to public feeling, that film shall not be 
exhibited in the premises except with the prior consent in writing of the Council.

4.2.4 No film in the 'RESTRICTED 18' category may be exhibited in a multi-screen complex 
whilst persons under 18 are being admitted to any other performance in the complex.

4.2.5 When the programme includes a film in 'RESTRICTED 18, category the Licence holder 
shall display in a conspicuous position at each entrance to the premises a notice in clear 
letters in the following terms:

“PERSONS UNDER 18 CANNOT BE ADMITTED TO THIS CINEMA FOR ANY 
PART OF THE PROGRAMME".

4.2.6 The licence holder shall display at each entrance to the premises in a prominent position 
where it can be easily seen and read a timetable of the films on exhibition. In case of a 
multi-screen complex, where consent has been granted, the notice shall specify the 
particular part of the premises in which films in the 'RESTRICTED 18' category are being 
exhibited.

4.2.7 When exhibiting a ‘RESTRICTED 18’ film, the timetable of films must include the following 
addition to the category shown:

‘RESTRICTED 18’: “PASSED ONLY FOR PERSONS OF 18 YEARS AND OVER.
 THIS FILM IS LIKELY TO CONTAIN EXPLICIT WORKS OF CONSENTING SEX
 OR STRONG FETISH MATERIAL INVOLVING ADULTS.”

4.2.8 All individuals wishing to view a film in the ‘RESTRICTED 18’ category shall provide proof 
of age. The only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic 
identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or ID card bearing the PASS 
hologram.

4.3 Advertisements

4.3.1 No advertisement displayed at the premises of a film to be exhibited at the premises shall 
depict any scene or incident which is not included in the film as certified by the British 
Board of Film Classification or approved for exhibition by the Council.

4.3.2 Where the Council has given notice in writing to the licence holder of the premises 
objecting to an advertisement on the ground, that, if displayed, it would offend against good 
taste or decency or be likely to encourage or incite to crime to lead to disorder or to be 

Page 48



22

offensive to public feeling, that advertisement shall not be displayed at the premises except 
with the prior consent of the Council.

4.4 Sale of Sex Articles

No sex articles or other things intended for use in connection with, or for the purpose of
stimulating or encouraging sexual activity or acts of force or restraint which are associated 
with sexual activity shall be displayed, sold, hired, exchanged, loaned or demonstrated in a 
sex cinema.

PART 5  CONDITIONS APPLYING TO SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUES

5.1 Performances of Relevant Entertainment

5.1.1 Relevant entertainment shall take place only in the areas approved by the Council and so 
designated on the approved plan.

5.1.2 There shall be no private booths or performing areas provided on the premises.

5.1.3 There shall be a written code of conduct for performers. All performers must comply with 
the code and a record, signed by the performers, must be kept on the premises and be 
made available on request by the police or by an authorised officer. The code shall include
the following:

 No performances shall simulate any sexual act, include any sex act with any other 
performer, persons in the audience or with the use of any object.

 Performers must not use any inappropriate, lewd, suggestive or sexually graphic 
language.

 Performers must not touch the breasts or genitalia of another performer, at any time as 
part of a performance.

 There shall be no use of sex articles (as defined by paragraph 4(3) of Schedule 3 of the 
Act) at any time.

 There shall be no physical contact between a performer and a customer except as 
permitted by the House Rules (see 5.2.1).

 Performers must not climb onto furniture provided for customers. 
 Performers must not remain in a state of undress in any public area when they have 

completed their act. 
 No performer must appear outside the premises in a nude or scantily-clad condition.

5.2 House Rules

5.2.1 Prior to the opening of the premises, the licence holder must provide a copy of the 
premises’ House Rules to the Council and to Devon and Cornwall Constabulary for 
approval.  The House Rules must include, as a minimum, the following:

 No person under the age of 18 shall be permitted to view relevant entertainment.
 The only time any physical contact shall be allowed between a performer and a 

customer is when the performer introduces him/herself with a handshake or kiss or 
when a tip is placed in their garter, arm band, or hand.  Other than that, there shall be 
no contact.

 No member of the audience shall throw money or otherwise give gratuities to the 
Page 49



23

performers except as permitted above.
 No customer shall accept from or give to any performer or member of staff any 

telephone number or business card or note.
 Customers and staff will not be permitted to photograph, record, film or electronically 

transmit any performance.
 Customers must remain seated whilst watching a performance of relevant 

entertainment.
 Any customer behaving in a disorderly or inappropriate manner will be removed from 

the premises and may be excluded for such period as the licence holder considers 
appropriate.

5.2.2 On entry to the premises, each customer must be provided with a copy of the House Rules.

5.2.3 All performers and staff must be given a copy of the House Rules. They must sign and date 
a copy of the House Rules which must be retained on the premises and made available on 
request by the police or by an authorised officer.

5.2.4 A copy of the House Rules shall be displayed at all times in or near the performers' 
changing room(s) so that they can be easily read by the performers.

5.2.5    Copies of the House Rules will be prominently displayed throughout the premises in 
locations where they can be easily read by the public.

5.2.6 Any changes or alterations to the House Rules must be submitted in writing for the approval 
of the Council.

5.3 Protection of Performers

5.3.1 Performers shall be aged 18 years or over. The applicant shall ensure that, prior to 
employment, all performers undertaking relevant entertainment provide documents proving 
that they are 18 years of age or over.  Acceptable forms of identification are recognised 
photographic identification documents, such as a driving licence, passport or ID card 
bearing the PASS hologram. These documents must be copied and retained on the 
performer's file.

5.3.2 A record shall be maintained on the premises detailing the names and start and finish times 
of individual performers involved in all forms of relevant entertainment. The record will be 
made available on request by the police or by an authorised officer.

5.3.3 Performers shall be provided with secure and private changing facilities.  Performers shall 
have direct access to changing facilities without being required to pass through or in close 
proximity to the audience.

5.3.4 No performer shall be allowed to work if, in the judgement of the management they appear 
to be drunk, intoxicated, or under the influence of illegal substances.

5.3.5 All entrances to private areas to which members of the public are not permitted access 
shall have clear signage stating that access is prohibited.

5.3.6 Any exterior smoking area for use by performers shall be kept secure and separate to any 
public smoking area.

5.3.7 The licence holder shall implement a written policy to ensure the safety of performers when 
leaving the premises after of work.   The policy must be made available for inspection on 
request by a police officer or by an authorised officer.

5.3.8 No person other than performers and authorised staff shall be permitted in the changing 
room(s). 

Page 50



24

5.3.9 The charges for entrance and any compulsory purchases within the venue must be clearly 
displayed at every entrance to the premises.

5.3.10 All charges for products and services must be displayed prominently inside the premises 
and at each customer table and in the bar area.

5.4 Door Supervisors

5.4.1 All individuals employed on the premises to conduct security activity (within the meaning of 
paragraph 2(1) (a) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security Act 2001) must be licensed by the 
Security Industry Authority. 

5.4.2 An adequate number of SIA licensed door supervisors shall be on duty on the premises 
whilst the premises is open to the public (actual numbers and locations to be agreed with 
Devon and Cornwall Constabulary and the Council)

5.4.3 All door supervisors shall wear clothing to differentiate themselves from other staff.

5.4.4 A policy of random searches of persons entering the premises shall be operated. Any 
person found to be in possession of illegal drugs upon entry shall be prevented entry and, 
where possible, restrained until the police can take such person into custody.  Any person 
found using illegal drugs on the premises shall be removed from the premises, or where 
possible, restrained until the police can take such person into custody.

5.5 Sale of Sex Articles

No sex articles or other things intended for use in connection with, or for the purpose of
stimulating or encouraging sexual activity or acts of force or restraint which are associated 
with sexual activity shall be displayed, sold, hired, exchanged, loaned or demonstrated in a 
Sexual Entertainment Venue.

5.6 Exhibition of Films

Films classified as ‘RESTRICTED 18’ must not be shown on the premises.

 

Page 51



25

APPENDIX C – Application Procedure for Grant, Variation, Transfer or Renewal of 
Licence for a Sex Establishment

Grant of a Licence

To apply for the grant of a sex establishment licence an applicant must:
 provide a completed application form; 
 provide a scale plan of the premises to which the application relates;
 provide a criminal conviction certificate from Disclosure Scotland (issued under section 112(1)(a) of 

the Police Act 1997 or the results of a subject access search under the Data Protection Act 1998 of 
the Police National Computer conducted by the National Identification Service;

 A criminal conviction certificate (Basic DBS Check) or the results of a subject access search of the 
police national computer (PNC Check) – this document must be dated within the last month.

 pay the current non-refundable application fee;
 pay the current ‘hearing’ fee of (refundable if a committee hearing is not required);
 display a notice on or near the premises;
 advertise the application in a local newspaper;
 send a copy of the application and plan to the Licensing Department, Devon & Cornwall Constabulary, 

Launceston Police Station, Moorland Road, Launceston, PL15 7HY Chief Officer of Police, Barnstaple 
Police Station, North Walk, Barnstaple, Devon, EX31 1DU within 7 days of making the application to 
the council.

Plan of Premises

The plan shall show: 

 the extent of the boundary of the building, if relevant, and any external and internal walls of the 
building and, if different, the perimeter of the premises; 

 the location of points of access to and egress from the premises; 
 the location of escape routes from the premises; 
 in a case where the premises is to be used for more than one licensable activity, the area within the 

premises used for each activity; 
 fixed structures (including furniture) or similar objects temporarily in a fixed location (but not furniture) 

which may impact on the ability of individuals on the premises to use exits or escape routes without 
impediment;

 in a case where the premises includes a stage or raised area, the location and height of each stage 
or area relative to the floor; 

 in a case where the premises includes any steps, stairs, elevators or lifts, the location of the steps, 
stairs, elevators or lifts; 

 in the case where the premises includes any room or rooms containing public conveniences, the 
location of the room or rooms; 

 the location and type of any fire safety and any other safety equipment including, if applicable, 
marine safety equipment; and 

 the location of a kitchen, if any, on the premises. 

The plan may include a legend through which the matters mentioned or referred to above are sufficiently 
illustrated by the use of symbols on the plan. 

Public notices
A notice must be displayed at or on the premises to which the application relates for a period of not less than 
21 consecutive days from the day following the day the application was given to the council, where it can be 
conveniently read from the exterior of the premises.  

Where the premises cover an area of more than 50 square meters, a further identical notice must be 
displayed every 50 metres along the external perimeter of the premises abutting any highway. 

The notice must be on pale blue paper sized A4 or larger and printed legibly in black ink or typed in black in 
a font size equal to or larger than 16.

The notice must state: 

 details of the application and activities that it is proposed will be carried on or from the premises, 

Page 52



26

 the full name of the applicant, 
 the postal address of the premises, or in the case where there is no postal address, a description of 

the premises sufficient to enable the location and extent of the premises to be identified,
 the date, being 28 days after that on which the application is given to the council, by which 

representations may be made to the council and that representations should be made in writing,
 that it is an offence knowingly or recklessly to make a false statement in connection with an 

application and the maximum fine (£5000) for which a person is liable on summary conviction for the 
offence.

A similar notice must be published in a local newspaper or similar document within 7 days of giving the 
application to the council.

Variation of a licence

The holder of a licence may apply at any time for any variation of the terms, conditions or restrictions on or 
subject to which the licence is held.

The process of applying for a variation is the same as that for applying for an initial grant except that a plan 
of the premises is not required unless the application involves structural alterations to the premises.

Renewal of a licence

The holder of a licence may apply for renewal of the licence.  In order for the licence to continue to have 
effect during the renewal process, a valid application together with the appropriate fee must be submitted 
before the current licence expires.

The process of applying for renewal of a licence is the same as that for applying for an initial grant except 
that a plan of the premises is not required.

Transfer of a licence

A person may apply for transfer of a licence at any time.

The process of applying for transfer of a licence is the same as that for applying for an initial grant except 
that a plan of the premises is not required.

Page 53



27

APPENDIX D - PROCEDURES FOR LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE HEARINGS AND    
THE FORM OF DISCUSSION AT HEARINGS

1. The quorum for Sub-Committees shall be 3 and decisions may be taken by a majority vote. 
Abstentions will not be permitted and the Chair will not have a casting vote.

2. The Sub-Committee may specify a maximum period of time in which the parties may exercise the 
rights provided for in Reg.16 and may specify a maximum period of time in which any other person 
who is permitted to appear at the hearing may address the Sub-Committee.
 

3. At the start of the hearing the Chair shall:-

 Introduce the members of the Sub-Committee and explain the role of those present on 
behalf of the Authority

 Establish that no members of the Sub-Committee have a personal or prejudicial interest in 
the matter to be considered

 Establish who else is present and their interest in the hearing
 Ensure that an attendance list is circulating
 Explain the purpose of the hearing and the procedure to be followed
 Explain what will happen at the conclusion of the hearing.

4. The proceedings shall take the form of a discussion led by the Chair. Its purpose shall be to enable 
the parties and others to put their respective points of view and to enable the Sub-Committee to 
obtain all the information it needs to make its decision.

5. Unless the Sub-Committee, after consultation with the parties, determines otherwise, the Authority 
shall outline the case first and call any witnesses on its behalf. The applicant should then present its 
case and call any witnesses on its behalf. Other persons shall be heard in the order determined by 
the Sub-Committee. The applicant shall have the right of final reply.

6. The parties and members of the Sub-Committee may put questions to and invite comments from 
representatives and witnesses, and any other person present may put questions or invite comments 
with the consent of the Sub-Committee. Questions should be put impartially, through the Chair. 

7. Unless the Sub-Committee, after consultation with the parties, determines otherwise, witnesses shall 
not be allowed to address the hearing until they are called to give evidence.

8. The Sub-Committee may refuse to permit the giving of evidence that it considers to be irrelevant or 
repetitious.

9. At the conclusion of the presentation of the cases, the Sub-Committee may withdraw to consider its 
determination. Before making its determination, the Sub-Committee may receive advice on legal and 
procedural issues from its officers, but the substance of that advice shall be disclosed to the parties 
and they shall be given the opportunity to comment on it. 

10. The Sub-Committee may from time to time adjourn the hearing and, if the date, time and place of the 
adjourned hearing are announced at the hearing before the adjournment, no further notice shall be 
required.

11. The decision, with reasons, will normally be given at the conclusion of the hearing.

(Approved by Licensing Committee 14.2.2005)

Page 54



28

APPENDIX E - SAFEGUARDING

Torridge District Council is helping to tackle child sexual exploitation and trafficking by working 
together with key partners particularly the Police and Safeguarding Boards.
 
Through agencies working together and sharing information, we aim to identify and prevent sexual 
exploitation, disrupt the activities of perpetrators, protect children and young people and prosecute 
perpetrators of sexual exploitation. Sharing information with the Police and Safeguarding Boards 
helps to protect young people from harm. Safeguarding children and young people is everyone’s 
business and everyone’s responsibility. 

Child sexual exploitation is a crime that can affect any child, anytime, anywhere – regardless of 
their social or ethnic background. 

Sexual exploitation of children and young people involves exploitative situations, contexts and 
relationships where young people (or a third person or persons) receive something, e.g. food, 
accommodation, drugs, alcohol, cigarettes, affection, gifts, money, etc. as a result of them 
performing, and/or another or others performing on them, sexual activities. Violence, coercion and 
intimidation are commonly involved in such exploitative relationships. 

Child sexual exploitation involves perpetrators grooming youngsters and using their powers to 
sexually abuse them. Sexual exploitation of children and young people can take many forms, 
whether it occurs through a seemingly ‘consensual’ relationship with an older boyfriend, or a young 
person having sex in return for attention, gifts, alcohol or cigarettes.

How sex establishments and their employees can help tackle child sexual exploitation 

Sex Establishments and their employees are in a good position to help identify victims of sexual 
exploitation because, through the operation of their premises, licence holders and their employees 
may come into contact with children, young and vulnerable people.

In particular, licence holders and their employees should ask themselves the following questions 
when they see young and vulnerable people in or around their premises:

 Do any of your customers appear to be under 18 years old?
 Are they with a much older person and appear to be in a relationship?
 Do you think that they are under the influence of alcohol or drugs?
 Are children/young people being brought regularly to your premises by older people? If so, 

ask yourself why?

If you have reason to suspect that a child is being abused or at risk of abuse it is your responsibility 
to report your concerns to and share information with the Police (Tel: 101) and Devon 
Safeguarding Children Board. (Tel: 0345 155 1071).

Page 55



REPORT OF LEAD LICENSING OFFICER
To: LICENSING COMMITTEE
Subject: BUSINESS REPORT
Date: 27 FEBRUARY 2019 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:    

To provide information to Members on the performance of the Licensing Service

1. INTRODUCTION

This report provides a summary of the performance of the Licensing Service between 1st April 2018 
and 31st December 2018. 

2. REPORT

The report provides information under the following headings:

 Business Activity and Performance
 Financial Performance
 Enforcement and Inspection Activity

Members will have received some of this information through the Quarterly Business Review 
mechanism but this report provides additional detail which will be of interest to Members.  

Business Activity and Performance

Demand on the Service has decreased this last year – 567 applications compared with 632. This is 
due to a decrease in taxi driver and taxi operator renewals and a reduction in the number of 
Temporary Event Notices. There is also a decrease in the number Animal Activity Licences. These 
were usually issued between October and December but due to new legislation they have not been 
issued under January so will appear on the next quarter statistics.  Average processing times have 
reduced.

An analysis of licenses issued is provided in Table 1 below.

Table 1 – Number of Licences Issued
Licences Issued Target Processing 

Time
Average Processing 

Time
Licence

2017/18 2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18 2018/19
Licensing Act 2003 361 329 6 days 6 days 4.3 2.1
Taxis 175 165 6 days 6 days 1.4 1.4
Other (GA2005 etc.) 96 73 6 days 6 days 6.6 3.9

Total 632 567 6 days 6 days 4.1 2.5

Page 56

Agenda Item 10



Financial Performance

Revenue for the financial year stands at £96,968 which is £4,558 above the profiled budget of 
£92,410. The taxi revenue has been adjusted to take account of 3 year licences for drivers and 5 
year licences for operators. The increase in “other” income is due to the restructured fees for animal 
activity licences. A breakdown of income is shown in Table 2.  

Table 2 – Income

Licence Profiled 
Budget 
2018/19

Income 
2018/19

Variance on 
Budget

LA 2003 56820 58206 +1386
Taxis 23700 24345 +645
Other 11890 14417 +2527

Total 92410 96968 +4558

  

Enforcement and Inspection Activity

The Licensing team have undertaken 29 animal licensing inspections during quarter 3.

The Service continues to work with other agencies such as the police and fire service to provide co-
ordinated enforcement where appropriate.  

There have been no Licensing Sub-Committee hearings during the year.

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
None

Financial Implications
None 

Human Resources Implications
None

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications
None

Equality/Diversity
None

Risk Management
None

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
All regulatory activity is carried out in accordance with current policy and procedures.

Page 57



Data Protection (GDPR) Implications
None

Ward Member and Lead Member Views

4. CONCLUSIONS

The licensing team has seen a slight reduction in the number of licence applications and a reduction 
in processing times.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Members note the content of the report.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Date of Consultation –
Officers Consulted -

Contact Officer: Chris Parkhouse

Background Papers: Licensing files

Page 58



Document is Restricted

Page 59

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	7 SMALL COMMERCIAL VESSEL LICENSING POLICY
	SCV Licensing Policy v.2.1 DRAFT2019-2

	8 Allocation of Hackney Carriage Plate
	9 Sex Establishment Policy
	Sex Establishment Policy v2.1 DRAFT

	10 Business Report
	15 Gambling Premises

